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situated within 12 versts, lﬁ the Mariinsk dlslnct It possesses a stone church
of St. Michael, the \l(hlhtnﬁ(-uus . ;

_ The fertile region surrounding the station yields annually a considerable
quantity of grain and flour, exported to Eastern: Siberia. In 1808, the total
exports amounted to 13,615 puds of rye, 82,894 puds of oats, 1.528 puds of
barley, 36,000 puds of rye flour and 2,275 puds of oil-seed.

Church at station of Taigé. ﬁ’v

From the station, the line descends to the valley of the Kiya river and,
at the 345 verst, spans the Antibés by a wooden bridge with an opening of
20 sazhens. Ascending further to the secondary watershed of the river

_Antibés at the 338 to 341 versts of the line, lies a large swamp having

22 versts in length and an average depth of 1.20 sazhen.
11) Mariinsk, Il class station. Buffet. (361 v. from Knvoshchekovo,‘ :
1693 v. from Chelidbinsk). The district town of Marfinsk is situated in proxim-
ity to the station (pop. 8,300; 4,323 males, 3977 females), (50° 18 N, fat; "
57°25" E. long.). It stands on the river Kiya, left tributary of the Chuzlym,"".’_j'”
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and on the greal Siberian highway. Previously it" was represented by the
small village of Kiiskoe, which in 1856 was converted into a town. In 1857 it
received the name of Mariinsk. The town contains 1,017 houses, mainly
wooden, two orthodox churches, a stone cathedral of St. Nicholas, and a
wooden-ehurch at the cemetery in honour of All Saints; a Jewish synagogue
of stone

Schools: 2 urban elementary schools for boys and girls, 2 parish schools,
a reading school. A poorhouse, a night shelter, an apothecary's shop. The
factories are represented by 5 tanneries. 2 soap-boileries, 1 mead and beer
brewery, 5 butter manufactories and two tallow-boileries. The output of the
factories does not exceed a value of R. 50,000 to 70,000 per annum.

There are 32 commercial houses and manufactories, 37 shops, ¢ innus,
2 taverns. 1 wine cellar, 10 wine-shops and no hotels.

Bridge over the Yaya.

Furnished rooms at R. i a day. The town revenue is estimated at
R, 20,000 to 25,000 per aunum. Upon the whole, the commercial operations
transacted in the town are ot considerable, in spite of the great percentage
of Jews in its population and the proximity to the gold mines. This is explain-
ed by the fact that trade is concentrated in other localities lying near to
the sources of industry, and the preference shewn by the Jews for a rapac-
ious expleitation of the gold mines.

On the 8 and 4 July 1891, the town was honoured by the visit of His
Imperial Majesty the present Emperor Nicholas II, then Heir Apparent to the
throne, on his way from the Far East.

His Majesty was greeted by the representatives of the town, by school
children and a crowd of people, and visited the cathedral of St. Nicholas
‘the Miracle-worker, On the 4 July, His Majesty resumed his journey, and on
his way to Tomsk was welcomed at every village by the people, who greeted
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the Imperial Traveller with holy images and bread and salt, thus manifesting
their cordial hospitality. The river Kiya, on which the town stands, is abont
398 versts long and from 10 to 50 sazhens wide. Navigation is carried on
only with rafts; gold mines belonging to the Transaltdi group occur on its
upper reaches.

Town of Marfinsk.

The most important trading firms are represented by Akselrud (gold;
grocery, trinkets, colonial goods), Gurévich (manufactured goods), lzikson
(jewelry), Savéliev (manufactured and other articles; tannery, soap-boilery,
hrewery), Yudalévich (manufactured goods and a distillery).

A great quantity of
grain produets, mainly
oats and rye flour, are for-
warded to the east from
the environs of the station.

In 1898, the export was
270,355 puds. Within two
versts, of the station, the
line @rosses the Kivaby a
bridge of 100 sazhens (at
364 verst). It has fonr iron
spans of 25 sazhens each,

Bridge over the Kiya. withroadway uponthelow-
er chord, and stone piers.

From the Kiya, the line begins its ascent by level grades (0.008) to the
high watershed of the latter and the river Tidzhin, the right affluent of the
Kiya. The highest point of the watershed rises to an altitude of 64 sazhens
above the station of Mariinsk.

12) Suslovo. V class station (384 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 1716 v. from
Chelidbinsk). The village of the same name (pop. 1861) in the Marfinsk
district is situated a verst and a half from the station. It contains a wooden
church of St Nicholas. a school and an elementary school for girls, 4 shops
and 2 tanneries. Leaving the station, the line resumes its ascent to the
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watershed and reaches its highest point at the 400 verst. Further on, the line
descends to the river Kozylitk, crossing a stone culvert with an opening of
2.50 sazhens under an embankment of 6 sazhens. A small quantity of rye is
forwarded from here to the east. In 1898, the export amounted to 22.183 puds,
mainly .oats and rye flour.

18) Tidzhin. V class station. (418 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 1750 v. from
Chelidbinsk). The village of the same name (pop. 1206) is situated at a distance
of 4 versts, in the Mariinsk district.

The village possesses a church in honour of St Nicholas, a school,
a parish school and 3 shops. This region supplies the East with grain.
In 1898, as much as 43,394 puds, mainly oats and rve flour, were forwarded
from this point.

From the station, the
line continues its descent
to the river Tidzhin, the
right tributary of the Kiya
and, within 3 versts of
the station, ecrosses the
latter at the 421 verst by an
iron bridge of 20 sazhens.

Hence the line ascends
to the watershed of the
rivers Tidzhin and Itat,
for a considerable distance
running by maximum level
grades (0.008). Upon rea-
ching its highest point, the
line descends by lighter Bridge over the Kostl.
grades to the next station.

14) Itat. V class station (451 v. from Krivoschékoevo, 1783 v. from Chelii-
binsk). The village of ltat is situated at a distance of 4 versts on the Sibe-
rian highway in the Mariinsk district. It contains a wooden chureh of St
Nicholas, a Jewish prayer-house, a school and an elementary school, 8 shops,
a tannery, a soap-boilery and 6 flour-mills. Grain is forwarded from here to
the Bast. In 1898, the export amounted to 51,397 puds, mainly oats. From the
station, the line continues its descent to the river Itat, spanning it at the
403 verst by a wooden bridge of 15 sazhens. Further on, it crosses a low
watérshed and runs over the Kosul by an iron bridge with an opening of
201 sazhens (469 v.). From the river, the line rises by maximum grades
(0.008) to the plateau of the next station

15) Bogotol. IlI class station. Buffet. (486 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 1818 v.
from Cheligbinsk). A wooden church is erected near the station out of the
Emperor Alexander 11 fund; it contains three aisles consecrated to St. Nicho-
las the Miracle-worker, the Yaroslav Saints Theodore, David and Constantine
and the martyr St. Claudia. This was the hundredth church built at the ex-
pense of the same fund.

There is a medical and feeding station for the settlers bound for the for-
est localities in the Marfinsk district, which is also the residence of an of-
ficial for the regulation of the emigration movement.

The trading village of Bogotél (pop. 4,673) is situated within 6 versts of
the station on the v;left bank of the Chulym on the Siberian highway, includ-
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ed in the Mariinsk district. The settlement is provided with a stone church
in honour of the Apparition of Our Lord, & Jewish prayer-house, 2 schools
for boys and girls, a forestry school, and two poorhouses for exile settlers.
There are 4 tanneries, 3 brick-kilns, 5 flour-mills, 25 shops, 3 wineshops, and a
local village board. Oats, wheat and rye flour are ceonveyed from here to
Eastern Siberia.

Bridge over the Kosil.

From the station, the line proceeds along the high watépshed of the ri-
vers Kiya and Chulym, which has an elevation of 43 sazhens above the sta-
tion of Achinsk.

16) Krasnaya. V class station. (517 v, from l\mush(hékow 1849 v. from
Chelidbinsk). The trading village of Krasnoréchenskoe (pép, 3,167) is situated
at a distance of 6 versts from the station on the left bank of the Chulym
and the small river Krasnaya in the Mariinsk district. The village contains
a stone church' in’the name of the
Archistrategus Michael, a Jewish pray-
erhouse, 2 scheols, a home preparator
school, a poorhouse for settlers, 4 shops,
a brick-kiln, 10 flour-mills. The goods
traffic is yet insignificant.

Hence the:line continues its descent
to the valley of the Chulym and, atthe
546 verst, passes the frontier of the

- Tomsk and Yemealsl\ governments. At
3ridge over the Chulym, the 547 ver sbwtt mosses the Chulym by
a bridge of l@‘) zhens, with one span
of 50 sazhens and two of 40 sazhens, supported on sf&me piers.

17) Achinsk. III class station. Buffet. (5504 v.#from Krivoshchékovo,
1882 v. from Chelidbinsk). Is situated 2 versts from the town of Achinsk, con-
nected by a roadway and within a verst from \hqﬂ Chulym A branch line of .
112 versts unites the station with the landing-plage on the Chulym. A med-
ical and feeding station is established within 21%2 versts of the railway for
settlers bound for the localities allotted for colonisation in the Achinsk and
Minusinsk distriets. It is the residence of an official entrusted with the regul-
ation of the emigration movement. '
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Achinsk is a district town of the Yeniséisk government (pop. 6,714
3.453 males, 3,261 females; 36° 16' N. lat., 60° 13' E. long.) situated on the
Siberian highway, on the right elevated bank of the Chulym, within 13 versts
of the boundary of the Tomsk government. The environs of the fown are
hilly and covered with copses of young birches, only the western part is
level and contains a number of lakes provided with fish. Achinsk was found-
ed in the XVII century
[n 1642, the Téara \'H'\'i‘\'l'nl;l
Tugachévski established
the Achinsk stockaded post
on the river Yus, tributary
of the Chulym; in 1682 it
was burnt down by the
Kirgiz and built sgain on
the site of the present
town. In 1782, the town of
Achinsk wasrankedamong
the district towns of the
Tomsk government, and in
1822 it was included in the Station of Achinsk
Yeniséisk government.

Since the construction of the great Siberian main line, the town is much
improved and enlarged, containing now 955 houses, four churches: a stone
cathedral in honour of the Holy Trinity, a church in the name of Our Lady
of Kazian, beyond the river, another in honour of the Elevation of the Holy
Cross at the cemetery, and a prison church consecrated to the Archangel
Michael. The educational institutions are: a preparatory gyvmnasium for girls,

Town of Achinsk.

a three-class urban school for boys and girls, and a parish school. There are
also a public library and a small museum, a hospital of the Public Charitable
Board, a poorhouse, an apothecary’'s shop, a private printing office. The town
numbers 53 shops, 10 stores, 9 wine-cellars, 4 wine-stores, a public club, an
hotel with rooms from R. 1 to R. 2 a day, 10 inns. The factories are repre-
sented by 38 tanneries, a candle and soap manufactory, 2 potteries and a fur
manufactory. Their cutput does not exceed a value of R. 80,000 to 40,000 per
annum. The fair hela annually from the 15 November to the 15 December is
insignificant, having a business of scarcely R. 40,000 to 50,000. No* particular
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hrunch of mdusiﬂ is pursued in this town, where only a small quantity of
manufactured and grocery goods are put on the market. The town revenue
amounts, to R. 40,000 per annum.

On the 2 July, 1891, Achinsk was visited by His Imperial Majesty the
present Emperor Nicholas II, then Heir Apparent to the throne, on his way
from the Far East. A triumphal arch, which exists to the present day, was
erected for the reception of His Majesty on the eastern side of the town.

The Chulym, which is a tributary of the Ob, takes its rise in the Kuz-
nétsk Alatdu and is composed of the Black and White Yus. Gold mines be-
longing to the mining district of Achinsk and Minusinsk are situated on its
upper reaches. The course of this river is very sinuous and navigation only
possible in spring during high water for a distance of 1000 versts, from.the
mouth of the river to the town of Achinsk.

Previous to the construction of the railway line, manufactured and iron
goods to supply Eastern Siberia were mainly forwarded by the Chulym to
Achinsk and conveyed further in carts to their destination. About 140,000
boxes of tea, sent overland from Kidkhta, were the chief article of transport
conveyed by barges from Achinsk. The navigation on the Chulym was of
great service during the construction of the Midsiberian railway line, for the
conveyance of railway appliances and materials to Achinsk.

From the 5—10 May to
the 1 July, steamers with
burges come to Achinsk
from Tiumén, Barnatl and
Tomsk. The tariff for pass-
engers and goods is .ap-
pointed by the shipowners.
These steamers perform the
passage from* ,An'hﬁnk to
Tomsk in 2‘&'3 to -3 days,
and from’ Ton}gk over 10
days. The wide fertile
region.’ coﬁn@'ﬁoé with the
town of Aechinsk and with
the ad,jacem Minusinsk di-

Station of Chernoréchenskaya. striet is pm‘twulal 1\ favour-

able for agrlcultu"e. and

will in the near future yield considerable quantities of grain for. export to

the East by the Midsiberian railway and by the Chulym for further convey-
ance by theOb to Tiumén and the European markets.

In 1898, the quantity of rye, oats and wheat- ﬂougwab 81,807 puds From
the station. of Achinsk to the east, the country becomes mountainous, the line
ascends to the watershed of the rivers Chulym an ‘ﬂi.and spans the latter
by a wooden bridge of 15 sazhens (566 v.).

18) Tarutino. V class station (570 v. from Krivos hékovo 1902 v. from Che-
liabinsk). The village of Taratino or Pokrdvskoe is situated in the Achinsk di-
strict on the Siberianhighway on both sides of the Ulii, (pop. 1,726). It contains a vill-

age board and a wooden church in honour of the Intercession of the Holy Virgin. - ik

«  The conveyance of gooda from this station is insignificant. From here the
line continues aleng the river Chornaya and at the “588 verst crosses it bva.
bridge with an opening of 10 sazhens ;
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19) Chernoréchenskaya. IV class station (586 v. from vaushchpkm o,
1918 v. from Cheliabinsk). The village of Chernoréchenskoe of the Achinsk
district close by, on the small river Chornaya, lies in a swampy and wood-
ed country along the Siberian highway; it has a population of 1,406. This
gettlement was founded in the XVIII century and contains a church built in
1834 in honour of the Archangel Michael; some documents preserved in the
church testify that previous to its construction, in the winter of 1833, a bell
weighing 42 puds was brought in the night to the village and left there hy
an unknown individual. There is a parish school.

The conveyance of
eoods from the stationis not
considerable. From here
the line ascends by maxim-
um_ grades of 0.05 to the
high watershed of the riv-
er Chérnaya and the trib-
utaries of the Kemchug,
passes by the siding of
Kozulka (609 v.), descends
to the river Sharovaya and
crosses the Great Kem-
chug, left tributary of the
Chulym, by au iron bridge
of 15 sazhens. (623 v.). : ! ot
Throughout its coursefrom Bridge over the Great Kemchg.
the station to the 607 verst,
the line runs through the taigd.

20) Kemechug. IV class station (631 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 1963 v. from
Cheliabinsk). The village Great Kemchug of the Achinsk district is situated
on the Kemchig and on the Siberian
highway (pop. 833); it has existed from

1787. There is a stone church in honour
of 'St. Nicholas the Miracle-worker.
The place is surrounded with taigda and
swamps; this is why the inhabitants
scarcely occupy themselves with agri-
culture, but mainly with overland trans-
port, and partly with fishing and bee-
keeping. The site of the station is pic-
turesque and covered with a fir forest.
The station has no importance as a
centre of export. Hence the line ascends
Station of Kemchig. by light and further by maximum

‘ grades (0.15) to the watershed of the

rivers Great Kemchug, tributary of the Chulym, of the Ob system, and
the Kdcha falling into the Yeniséi. This watershed is the highest on the
Ob-Krasnoydrsk line. Passing here through a difficult country, the radius
‘adopted for curves is 120 sazhens. After having crossed the Kicha by a
stone bridge of 10 sazhens, the line resumes it course along the valley of
this river with maximum grades (0.15) and further mounts for 4 versts to the

B next station.
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21) Kacha. 'V class station (671 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2002 v. from
(Cheéliabinsk). Sukhovskoe of the Krasnoyarsk district is the nearest settlement
with a population of 115 it stands on the Kdcha and the Siberian
highway.

22) Minino. V class station (699 v. from Krivoshehékevo, 2,031 v. from
Chelidbinsk). The settlement of Minino is near by (pop. 590); the settlement.
of Aréiskoe is situated at a distance of 8 versts, in the Krasnoydrsk district,
on the great Siberian highway; it is
also known under the name of Zaledéevo,
The settlement of Aréiskoe is composed
of three communes: Aréiskoe, Yemelia-
novo, and Zaledéevo These settle-
ments stretch uninterruptedly along the
highway for a distance of 10 versts,
on the right bank of the Kacha, oppo-
site its junction with the Aréi; there
are many side streets, a large square
and about 50 shops. The total poepula-
tion exceeds 4,000. In autumn and
winter, the workmen are hired here
for the Yeniséisk gold mines. - The
settlement of Aréiskoe contains a'stone
two-storeyed church, which was @rect-
ed in the beginning of the past century: the upper story is (‘()llHt‘(‘l'i:lé(l Lo
the Holy Trinity, the lower to the Intercession of the Blessed Virgin: The
church possesses an image of the Holy Trinity which since the year 159§ is
solemnly carried (a week after Easter) to the town of Krasnoyarsk andgto
the villages of the Krasnoydrsk and Yeniséisk districts, and is again brought
back on the day of the Holy Trinity.
There is a parish school for boys and
girls.

From here the line descends (grade
15) along the valley. of the Kacha to
Krasnoyarsk, standing on the Yeniséi.

23) Krasnoyarsk. II class station,
Buffet. (716 v. from Krivoshchékovo,
2,048 v. fropn Chelidbinsk). The station
is situated near Krasnoyarsk, a. di-
strict town of the Yeniséisk government.

The passenger station .is a large
stone building; there are extensive
worksnops with 1,500 workmen employed
in different kinds of work compri-
sing waggon making, the fitting up of machinery, the black-smith’s trade,
electro-technical work, turnery and others. The machinery is provided with
electric mofors. A special workshop is attached to an engine-house holding
25 locomotives. A hospital with 30 heds contains a reception room and an
ambulance for outpatients. An apothecary’s shop. A store-house with mater-
ials required for the exploitation and construction of the line. In proximity
to the station stands a wooden house, containing the first Siberian railway
technical schoolinthe name of the Emperor Nicholas I, and close by is a med-

View on the river Kemchug.

Railway  line at the 659 verst.
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A
ical and feeding station for the registration and accomodation of emigrants
bound for the Krasnoydrsk and Minusinsk distriets.

Several buildings stand along the railway line, accomodating railway
employees and workmen. A branch line connects the station with a landing-
place on the left bank of the Yeniséi. Previous to the construction of the
Yeniséi bridge and before the opening of traffic on i, waggons, goods, pass-
engers and emigrants were conveyed from the landing-place on the Yeniséi
by barges and steamers of the Government. This landing-place is now used
for the deposit of materials brought down by the Yeniséi for the needs of
the railway, and for the embarcation of emigrants despatched up the Yeniséi
to colonise the Minusinsk district,

Railway technical schoo! in Krasnoydrsk.

Krasnoyarsk, the chief town of the Yeniséisk government, is situated on
the left bank of the Yeniséi at its junction with the Kdcha (56°N. lat., 43°4'E.
long). According to the census of 1897, the population is given as 26,600
(14,573 males, 12,057 females) and as 27,299 (13,844 males and 13,455 females)
by the statistical record of 1899. The town is picturesquely situated at an
altitude of 913 feet above the level of the sea.

The Yeniséi, breaking through a mountain pass, has a rapid current and.
in view of the town, is divided into two branches by pretty islands covered
with bireh trees. The right bank is fringed by the picturesque Kuistim mount-
ains composed of sharp, rocky and round cones, with slopes covered with
dwart trees. At the foot of these mountains, of which the Tokmdka is the
highest, lie the former Cossack villages of  Torgdshino and Bazaikha, which
now are inhabited by peasarts. Lower down rises the cupola of the Batdiskaya
mountain formed of round and fine porphyries. On the left bank, stands the

Gornaya sopka, whose summit consists of horizontally lying rocks of dark
jasper. The mountain Aféntova is nearer to the railway line; it is composed

of red sandstone covered with a seam of red marl, from which the town
received ist name. This mountain, falling to the Kdacha, forms a steep
and picturesque cape called Karatilnaya Gord, onthe summit of which stands
a chapel seen from a great distance, built in 1855 by the gold-miner

Kuznetsov.

The town was fonnded at the beginning of the XVII century.
In order to oppose the invasions of the Tatar tribes, the Arintsy and

Kichintsy, the Yeniséisk voyevida Dubénsky founded a fort named Kizil-

b - s N
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Yartara by the Tatars which means town ,of the Krasnoyarsk bank“ In 1882,
when Siberia was divided for purposes of administration into Eastern and
Western Siberia, upon the organisation of the Yeniséisk government, the
town of Krasnoyarsk ranked as a government town. A. P. Stepdnov, a well
known writer and author of the first description of the Yeniséisk government,
was the first governor of the town (1822—31).

Krasnoyarsk is regularly laid out; the large garden in the centre of the
town is considered the finest in Siberia. The streets and squares are unpaved
and have wooden side-walks.

The town contains 2,327 houses, of which only 98 are of stone.

The best street is the Bolshdya, where the trade is concentrated. There
are 11 orthodox churches; 2 stone cathedrals, 5 parish churches, 4 house chap-
els (in the gymnasium for boys, the diocesan school for girls, the prison
and the Archbishop’s house).

The stone diocesan house whieh is in process of construction, will also
contain a house-chapel. Among the churches, the cathedral of the Resurrec-
tion erected in 1759 is worthy of attention. It contains the following relics:
a bell with a Slavonic inscription, a wooden chalice ornamented with a de-
sign dating from Boris Godundv's reign (1598—1605). The new cathedral of
the Nativity, built according to the plan of the famous architect Ton, is re-
markable on account of its fine architecture and gilded cupolas. The construe-

~

Town of Krasnoyérsk.

tion of this cathedral was commenced in 1843, on the birthday of the Tsesa-
- révich Nicholas Alexdindrovich, deceased in 1866. The gold miners of Krasno-
varsk, wishing to commemorate this event by the foundation of a catheral,
started its construction, but in 1849 the vaults fell ‘down, and the cathedral
was rebuilt and ornamented by the gold-miner Shchegoliov at a cost of
R. 500,000. In 1858, the late Tsesarévich Nicholas Alexdndrovich, wishing to
participate in the adornment of the church, which was founded in comme-:
moration of his birthday (8 September 1843), presented a silver-clad image
of the Holy Virgin with the date of his birth inscribed in one corner. When
the church was inaugurated (1866), the late Empress Mary Alexandrovna
made a gift of all the sacerdotal vestments. This cathedral was visited twice
by Imperial personages: on the 21 July, 1873, by the Grand Duke Alexis Alex-

androvich on his way from the East, and on the 1 July 1891, by His Imper-

ial  Majesty, the present Emperor Nicholas II who, returning from his

4

Jjourney round the world, arrived at Krasnoyirsk and visited tha cathedral.
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a short Te Deum was then celebrated in his presence and the Archbishop
Tikhon presented to His Majesty an image of the Nativity of the Holy Virgin
with a few words of greeting.

The town of Krasnoyirsk contains a Roman Catholic and a Lutheran
chapel and a Jewish synagogue. The educational institutions are 26 in numb-
er: a gymnasinm for boys, a gymnasium for girls, a seminary, a clergy
school, a seminary for teachers, a public school, a town school with classes,
a diocesan school for girls, the Shehegoliov artisan’s school with 2 classes,
arailway technical school in the name of the Emperor Nicholas 11, 9 parish
schools, 4 church parish schools, 2 Sunday schools, a woman surgeon’s assist-
ants’ school.

There are 10 charitable and medical establishments: the Viadimir orpha-
nage under the patronage of the Empress Mary, with an elementary school,
the poorhouse of the
Public Charitable Board,
a home for convicts'
children, a poorhouse
founded by the honorary
citizen Mrs. Shehegoliov
and a feeding house for
orphanswith an element-
ary school organised by
the same lady, a baby-
home founded by the
Sinélnikov ~ Charitable
SOCiety' the night’Shelter The Christ's Nativity Cathedral in Krasnoyarsk.
of the same Society,
the hospital of the Public Charitable Board, a hospital for the poor found-
ed by the Sinélnikov Charitable Society, the Olga Home for emigrants’
children under the patronage of the Empress Alexdindra Féodorovna, open-
ed in 1899, the cost defrayed partly from a fund assigned by the Com-
mitee for the construction of the Great Siberian Railway. There are also
the following brotherhoods: that of the Nativity of the Blessed Virgin at-
tached to the cathedral, the St. Alexander Névsky Relief Society for pupils
of the Krasnoyérsk ecclesiastic school, the Relief Society for school children
in the Yeniséisk government, the Society for the promotion of elementary
education in Krasnoydrsk, the Sinélnikov Charitable Society, a branch of the
Russian Red Cross Society, the Society of doctors of the Yeniséisk govern-
ment, a branch of the Imperial Agricultural Society of Moscow, an amateur
society of dramatic art, ati amateur society of music and literature, a cooper-
ative supply society.

The most imvortant and active society in Siberia is the Krasnoydrsk
branch of the Imperial Agricultural Society of Moscow, established in 1890,
It has paid special attention to the improvement of seeds and to agriculture

in general, that being the chief resource of the population. The Society

exhibited its produce in Chicago in 1893, and in 1892 organised in Krasnovérsk
the first agricultural and industrial exhibition.

" The town possesses a small museum with a public library, a library for
the lower class with the reading-room of the brotherhood of the Holy Virgin,
~ the Skorniakov private library, bookshops of the Society for the promotion of
e;emenmry educat;on and of the Bible Society, 2 bookshopsand 4 printing offices




logical remains and shamanistic articles used by the )hatpms bawgmgg_ ‘
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The periodicals are: ,The Yeniséisk Government (Gazette, ,The Yenisé¢isk
Diocesan Gazette“, the private newspaper ,Yeniséi“ subject o the censorship,
and the Transactions of the Doctors’ Society of the Yeniséisk government. The
town theatre was burnt down in 1898, and has not been yet rebuilt. There
are a public and an industrial club. Hotels: Russia, with rooms frém K. 2 to
R. 5 a day. Gadalov's Hotel — R. I to R. 3. The Hermitage — R. 150 kop. to
R. 3. Mrs. Kuzmin's, from K. 1 to R. 3. Central Hotel, 75 kop.to R. 1 50 kop.
Siberia, R. 1 to R. 2. Furnished rcoms charge from R. 1 25 kop. to R. 3 a
day. The Hermitage Restaurant contains rooms at R. 1 to R. 2. a day. The
Russia Hotel is considered the best. The town is furnished with a telephone
which has over 100 subscribers paying R. 75 annually. '

During the period from 1830 to 1850, when mining industry was carried
on within the Yeniséisk government, the town of Krasnoyarsk was character-
ised by a lively trade, but since the centre of this industry was removed to
other points, the Krasnoyarsk trade has diminished. At present, the town
comprises 30 factories with an annual production of R. 582,000: a cast-iron
foundry and machinery works, a bell foundry, two saw-mills, eight tanner-
ies, three boileries, a wax candle manufactory, a distillery, two breweries
a steam flourmill, eight brick-kilns, two kvas-brewer ies. A fair is held
in Krasnoyarsk from the 20 December to the 26 January, with a
turnover of R. 25,000 to R. 30,000. The town revenue during the last three
vears, from 1897 to 1899, on the average amounted to R. 115,000 annuaily.
Financial institutions are represented by a branch of the State Bank. a town .
loan bank, and by a branch of the Siberian Trade Bank.

Important firms are:

L G. Gaddlov and N. G. Gaddlov for manufactured goods, mercery, colo-
nial wares, tea and sugar. N. N. Gadilov—shipowner. Smirnov —manufactured
articles. Zolotov —distillery. Komarov—bookseller. Kuznetsov — manufactured
and other wares. Parevilov —pottery, china and glass of his own manufn.ctur(‘
Poliakév—wine of his own manufacture. Razzorénoy — readvnml .
Trifon Savéliev and Sons for manufactured goods and metm
wold-miner and shipowner. Stebler—optician and gunsmit
his own manufacture.

'I‘ransport ofﬁces Russmn Goods Tmnsport Society

Agents of insurance societies: Dobzhfnskv of :"."'- First Russian Rire Insm'~, A
ance Society; Zhilin—of the Russian Fire Insura g6 Society: Potékhin —of meg
Russia Pire Insurance Society, SmirnGv of the Northern Society. pe N

Hackney coaches are represented by uncomformble bﬂ:ﬂ.ﬂ w;thcut sprml's K
pl"ying without a tariff. ‘ g

* Among the important events in the histm;) of Lhe t.own ma,y‘bu mqmtmned

the visit of His Imperial Magestv, the present Emperor Nicholas I, which -

took’ place on the 1 and 2 July, in 1891 on his way from the Far East: A -
triumphal arch, erected in honour of the Imperial guest near the landing-

place on the bank of the Yeniséi, exists to the present day. After having Sk

sarveyed the town relics, the educational and charitable institutions md;ﬁhe M
local froops, ‘His Imperial Majesty examined with gnmimm some. mit o)

mainly to the Kﬁc'&muy, exh&bited in the Minus
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There are two monasteries in the environs of Krasnoyirsk: the monastery
of the Ascension situated within 12 versts of the town higher up the Yeniséi
on its elevated and picturesque bank; it is inhabited by a few monks; 2 wood-
en churches and a large stone building are attached to the monastery.
The nunnery in honour of the Miraculous Apparition of the Holy Virgin is
30 versts from the town by the Siberian highway; it possesses 2 wooden
churches and aboul 40 nuns, who teach reading, writing and handwork to
the girls of the neighhouring villages.

Special mention is 5
due to the library of the
Krasnoyarsk merchant
Yudin, at his pretty resid-
ence Tarakinovka si-
tuated at a distance of 4
versts from the town
near the railway bridge
over the Yenisséi. It is
housed in a special two-
storeyed building near
the house inhabited by
its owner. The library ;
contains ll]i\\'al‘dh‘ of 150 Mr. Yidin's summer villa Tarakdnovka, on the Yeniséi.

cases withapproximately

100,000 volumes. A sum of R. 126,957 K. 28 was expended on its maintenance
till 1898. A catalogue, which is now being made, will in the future facilitate
the arrangement of the books. Bibliography is very well represented. The
library is also well furnished with works concerning Siberia. Almost all the
periodicals which were issued from the beginnig of the XIX century are to
be found there.

The quantity of goods conveyed from the Krasuoydrsk station has not
vet been ascertained, on account of the recent opening of the traffic to
Irkitsk. In 1898, it amounted to 63,847 puds of grain, mainly wheat flour,
forwarded east, and 65,494 puds of cedar-nuts sent west.

The Yeniséi, which is one of the largest rivers in Siberia, rises in Mon-
golia and is formed by the junction of the Khakém and Bikém. After entering
the limits of Siberia, the river receives its name from the Tungus ,loanesi¥,
which means ,wide water. Breaking through the Sayédn ridge, the river
forms a large bar over which it runs at the rate of 60 versts an hour,
Further on, the river widens and slackens its course, but retains its mount-
ainous character till the town of Minusinsk.

At a distance of 12 versts beyond Minusinsk, the Yeniséi receives the
Abakdn, whieh is navigable for a distance of 50 versts: its basin is provided
with rich gold-mines, coal deposits and copper and iron ores. Twenty five
versts further, the Yeniséi is joined by the navigable river Tuba, flowing

“through a populous and fertile valley, where iron mines occur along its trib-

’ utary the Irba. Entering the Achinsk district and flowing N. N. E. for a

distance of 130 versts, the Yeniséi does nct receive any important affluents.
From the boundary of the Achinsk distriet to the town of Krasnoydrsk, it
traverses a mountainous country, receiving on the left the small river Biriusa,
remarkable on account of the numerous caves occurring in the limestone

_ mountains, and the Ména on the right. The breadth of the Yeniséi, which

= *
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above Krasnoyarsk is confined between mountains, at some places narrows
to 150 sazhens, whereas at others it expands to a verst and a half and some-
times more; the velocity of its current varies from 8 to 10 versts an hour,
Down stream from Khasnoyarsk, the river with its islands has a width of a
verst. After its junction with the Kan, falling into it on the right, the Yeniséi
turns north-west, and entering the Yeniséi district, runs northwards, where
it receives the immense and full-flowing river Tunguska or Angarai.

At this point, the river has a breadth of a verst and a half and more,
Beyond the town of Yeniséisk, the Kas, belonging to the Ob-Yeniséi canal,
and the Turukhan fall into it on the left; from the right it receives the Pod-
kamennaya-Tunguska (rich gold mines occur along its tributaries), the
Bédkhta, the l,uw‘m' Tungtska and the Koréika. In its lower course, the river

The Yeniséi near Krasnoyarsk.

is from 3 to 5 versts wide and even more, including the islands, On reaching
70°51' N. lat., the Yeniséi falls into Yeniséi Gulf.

Its total course is 3,100 versts. The Gulf of the Yeniséi comprises a
distance of 250 versts, and a width of 20 to 50 versts. At Krasnoyirsk, the
ice on the river breaks between the 11 and 27 April and freezes again be-
iween the 27 September and the 11 November. In spring, the water rises
5 sazhens above its ordinary level. The Yeniséi abounds in fish, which how-
everisof an inferior quality to that in the Ob. Although containing humerous
bars ana reefs, the Yeniséi is navigable nearly throughout its course, and is
deep enough for moderate sized steamers, reaching the town of Yeniséisk.

During the navigation season, 26 steamers cruise in the Yeniséi basin:

1) The Krasnoydrets, a two-serewed iron steamer, 25 N. H. P., belonging
to Cherepénnikov.

2) The 8t. Nicholas, double-wheeled iron steamer, 140 H. P., Sibiriakov.

3) The Dédushka ) t

4) The Rossia. J

5) The Moskvi, two-wheeled iron steamer, 60 H, P. Ivanov.

6) The Minusinsk, iron screw-steamer of the seagoing type, 26 H. P,
helonging to the Popham Trading Company.

wo-wheeled iron steamers, 100 H. P., Gaddlov. °
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7) The Barnatl, 46 H. P., Francois Labbon.

8) The Yeniséi, two-wheeled steamer with wooden hull, 60 H. P., Yeni-
séisk Co.

9) The Anna, wooden screw-steamer, 20 H. P., Budintsev.

10) The Ignatius, two-wheeled wooden steamer, 45 H. P., Kytmdnov.
11) The Transport-boat N°I, iron screw-steamer, 6 H. P.. Germdinov.
12) The Abakdnets, two-wheeled wooden steamer, 22 H. P., Poréchin.

18) The Gremiashehy, two-serewed iron steamer.

14) The Khribry, two-wheeled wooden steamer. Mechanical Engineer
Knorre.

15) The Pioneer, two-wheeled iron-steamer.

The steamers Glenmore and Scotia were purchased by the Yeniséisk
merchants Vostrotin, Kytmanov and Balandin from Popham’s English Company.

Nine steamors belonging to the Government are at the disposal of the
Engineers of Ways of Communication, to satisfy the needs of the railway,
and serve for the clearing of the Angara.

Freight and passenger steamers ply regularly several times a week
from Krasnoyarsk to Yeniséisk. From Krasnoydrsk to Minusinsk, navigation
is only possible at high water; at other times, the steamers only reach the
village of Sordkino. Between Yeniséisk and the mouth of the Yeniséi, navig-
ation is carried on by tow-steamers. The opening of traffic on the Siberian
main line, having already changed the former systems of trade in Siberia,
will also eontribute to the development of navigation on the Yeniséi, favour-
ably situated as far as concerns the easy access to its mouth, offering
every convenience for the establishment of a direct communication with
Europe through the Arctic Ocean. '

Inauguration of the future bridge over the Yeniséi.

The bridge over the Yeniséi (718—719 verst from Krivoshchékovo) has a
total length of 424'/s sazhens and is composed of six principal spans, with
metallic girders measuring 67.714 sazliens between the centres of bed-plates,
and two small spans covering the space between the land piers and the

~abutments. The metallic superstructure of the principal spans carries the track

on the lower chord and consists of two statically determined trusses with main

' gtruts of tubular seetion and ordinary flanged braces and intermediate struts.
" )
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The roadway has continuous longitudinal beains supported by tubular

- crgss girders rivetted to the main frames. The breadth between the principal

trusses is 1912 feet and their maximum height 71 feet. The trusses for the
sihall spans are semiparabolic and carry the track on the upper chord. The
bndzegnorma is suited for wheel traffic and is composed of timber “baulks
covered with planking fixed in longitudinals of trough section in the prin-
cipal spans and to consols in the smaller ones.

The metallic superstructure is of cast-steel from the plnns of Engineer.
.. D. Proskuriakdév, Professor of the Moscow Engineering school. The metal
was delivered by the Nizhnetagil Works belonging to the Successors of P. S.
Demidov, Prince San-Donato.
The steel bearings were preparved at the Huta Bankowa works at Warsaw.
All the river piers are founded on iron pneumatic caissons and are con-
structed with starlings rising 1.25 sazhens above' the highest water-mark.
The western abutment is also founded on a metallic caisson, while the eastern
stands on a timber one constructed according to the system of Engineer
Knorre. The depth of foundation for the river piers is 82 sazhens, for the

Construction of the Yeniséi bridge in winter.

western abutment, 52 sazhens, and for the eastern (on rock) ‘259 sazhens,
The whole masonry is of local granite, obtained from a village situated on
the river 60 versts above the bridge. Most of the cement was furnished from
the Glukhoozérsk works at St. Petersburg. The trusses are located 10 sazh-
ens above low-water mark.

The whole construction of the bridge, including the pneumatic founda-
tions, masonry, manipulation of iron work, erectlon and riveting was accom- i
plished by Engineer Knorre,

The separate spans of the superstructure were framed on the nmbuﬂf
ment adjoining the abutments and by means of capstans were launched into
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position over rollers. The framing of the iron work was carried out with the
help of a special rolling crane. This system of erection and launching, devised
]3{." the contractor himself, was applied here for the first time for the construes
tion of @ bridge of such magnitude and proved most successful, securing the
rapid -completion of the work ¢ !

»

Bridge over the Yenicéi.

24) Yeniséi. Buffet. (719 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2051 v. irom Chelia-
hinsk) is situated on the right bank of the Yeniséi. Considerable quantiiies
of grain are conveyed from here to the East, carried to the station by the
water-ways from the fertile districts on the upper Yeniséi. In 1898, the total
export of grain amounted to 178,978 puds.

25) Zykovo. IV class station (744 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2076 v. from
Chelisibinsk) Near at hand is the settlement of Zykovo (pop. 170) and the
trading village ot Veznesénskoye (pop. 1069) on the Siberian highway, in the
Krasnoyvirsk distriet. The village contains a wooden church in honour of the
Resurrection of Christ, a scheal with one class and the local village board.
Workmen for the Yeniséisk gold mines are hired here. On the 30 June, 1891,
the present Emperor Nicholas II, on his way from the Far East, received

~ here a deputation from the inhabitants of the Krasnoy#rsk district, who offer-
ed Lim bread and salt on a silver dish. His Majesty passed the night here
and resumed his journey at 8 in the morning,
 The station is not important as regards forwarding of goods.
St i railway line continues its ascent elong the valley of the Beriézovka,
- flanked on both sides by high and steep, mostly rocky, banks and, following
_its bed to the 757 verst, spans the river by a bridge of 25 sazhens.
. 26) Sordkino. V class station (767 -v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2039 v. from
? ,}litﬁiﬂ;ﬁk}. From here the line mounts along the valley of the Sitik (ma-
O R ; e

Bad(*

.
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ximum grade .01) and, after crossing this river by a bridge of 8 sazhens,
ascends by a grade of 0.15 to a watershed, the highest point of which lies
1268 sazhens above the roadway of the Yeniséi bridge. This ascent has three
culverts made of. stone passing under an embankment of 8 sazhens. Leavinx
the watershed, the line descends by an ineline of 015 fo the next station

27) Kamarchaga. V class station (791 v. from Krivoshohékovo, 2123 v.
from Chelidbinsk).

The line again approaches the Siberian highway it had left before; the
village of Tertézhkoye is situated within 8 versts, in the Krasnoydrsk district
(pop. 1250). It contains a wooden church and a reading school. From the
station, the line descends by light grades and reaches the river Yesatlovka,
spanning it at the 799 v. by an iron bridge with an opening of 20 sazhens.
Further on, the line ascends (maximum grades .015) to the watershed of the
rivers Yesatlovka and Balm having an altitude of 47 sazhens, and thence
descends again.

; 28) Balai. V class station (813 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2145 v. from
Chelidbinsk).

The village of Baldiskoe (Nikolskoe) with a population of 836 is situated
at a distance of 5 versts in the Kansk district, containing a church in honour
of St. Nicholas the Miracle-worker, and a sc¢hool.

Hence the line reaches the Balai river,—erossing it at the 821 verst by a
wooden bridge of 25 sashens with a height of 4!/4 sazhens, and further on,
by a maximum grade of 0.15, mounts to the watershed of the rivers Baldi
and Rybnaya.

29) Olginskaya. Il class station. Buffet. (837 v. from Krivoshchékuvo,
2169 v. from Chelidbinsk).

This station and the settlement established by the emigrants in its vici-
nity, received their name in honour of the Grand Duchess Olga Nikoldievna.
The settlement is inhabited by emigrants from the governments of Oriél,
Tambov, Poltava and Khirkov. To meet the spiritual needs of the railway
employees and of the inhabitants of the Olga settlement, a wooden church
dedicated to St. Olga has been built at the cost of the Emperor Alexander
[II fund, in honour of the Grand Duchess Olga Nikoldievna. The first stone
for the church was laid on the 11 July, 1897; iﬁ'v&as inaugurated on the 27
March by Joachim, Archhishop of Yeniséisk a@d Krasnoydrsk. His Imperial .
Majesty the Emperor favoured the church with the gmclouq gift of church
utensils and a chime of bells.

There is a medical and feeding station for the regxstratlon and distribu-
tion of the settlers in the localities allotted to colonisation in the Kansk
distriet. It is also the residence of an official entrusted with the regulatlon
~of the emigration movement.

The vxllage of Uyar (Spasopreobrazhénskoye) is situated on the Sibeman
highway, in the Kansk district (pop. 1248). It possesses a wooden chumh m
honour of the Transfiguration of Our Saviour and a parwh sehool. w0 #%n

From the Olginskaya station, the line descends by maximum gmdes of
015 to the valley of the Rybnaya, crossing this river by an iron bndge WJ.th

an opening of 60 sazhens. T

30) Troitsko-Zaozidrnaya.V class statwn (866 v Ir'om Krlvoshchékmo‘ i
2197 v. from Chelidbinsk).

The settlement of the same nme, with a papuiation of 1m iﬁcﬁ
 the station; it beloags:wl&e Kansk dmﬂot and stands on

=
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ary of the Kan. There is a wooden church of John the Baptist and a school
This village enjoys a certain reputation for its corn trade. At the end of the
XVIII ecentury, an iron mine situated at a distance of 7 versts was worked
by the merchant Lobanov, a small iron works having been established for this
purpose. At the present time, nothing is left of it. The estate of the nobleman

Samoilov, the largest in Siberia, stretched along the Bdérecha and covered an

1

Station of Olginskaya.

area of 25 versts in length and 15 versts in width. These lands have long
sinee again hecome the property of the State.

. Within 22 versts of the station, on the Siberian highway, is situated the
village of Rybinskoye with & population of 4,461; it is one of the largest trad-
ing villages of the Kansk district.

The inhabitants are chiefly engaged in agriculture. The village contains
a stone church of Peter and Paul, a Jewish prayerhouse, a model school with
two classes, —a;parish school, a hospital and the village board. When His
Imperial Majesty, the present Emperor Nicholas I1, in 1891 halted at this vill-
age, the whole commune offered him three grey horses, which were gracious-
‘ly accepted by His Majesty and sent off to Tomsk. The Imperial traveller
gave R. 500 for the local parish school.

Leaving the station, the line reaches the watershed of the rivers Borcha
and Kamdla, and descends to the valley of the Kamdla, crossing it at the
876 verst by a a wooden bridge with an opening of 20 sazhens.

. 31) Tyrbyl. V class station (885 v. from Kriveshchékovo, 2217 v. from
Chelidbinsk).

. The settlement of Tyrbyl was established near the station by emigrants
_ from the governments of Poltiva and Chernigov.

¥ g
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Hence the line déscends to the riwer Tvrbyl orossmg the latler over a .
mlvert with an opening of 2.75 sazhens, passing under an embankment of
25 sazhens. Further the line mounts o the watershed of the rivers Tyrbyl
and the Little Uria and passes over irs summit, which has an elevation of
100 sazhens, above the roadway of the Yeniséi bridge, followmg steep grades,
which required a great quantity of earth and engineering work.

32) Petrushkovo. V class station (908 v. from Kriveshchékovo, 2240 v.
from Chelifibinsk).

Since the construction of the line, an emigrant settlement has been
- established near the station. A wooden church, inaugurated onthe 21 March,
1899, in honour of the Moscow Saints Peter, Alexis, John and Philip, has been
built at the cost of the Emperor Alexander III fund, in order to satisfy the
spiritual needs of the settlers and railway employees. The church utensils
are made of silver given by the Fmpemr The bronze for the bells was also
provided by His Majesty.

The trading village of Urinskoye of the Kansk district, with a population
of 2,248, is sitnated within 20 versts of the station on the Siberian highway.

It contains a local board, a one-class school, several shops and a stone
church in honour of the Holy Trinity. His Imperial Majesty, the present
Emperor Nicholas II, on his way from the Far East in 1891, visited this church
and made a gift of R. 100. This donation was employed topurchase an altar .,
cross on which the following inseription was engraved: ,In remembrance of
the visit of His Imperial Highness, the Tsesarévich.“ :

Hence the line resumes its descent to the Little Urid, spanning it by an
iron bridge with an opening of 20 sazhens; further on, it crosses the Great
Urida by an iron bridge of 25 sazhens and, entering the level valley of the
Kan, follows this river to the station of Kansk.

The recent opening of traffic on the Midsiberain ratlwaj' makes it im- ', i
possible to ascertain the commercial importance of the mtlons between the
Yeniséi and Kansk, lying at a distance of 200 versts. None of these stations
was distinguished by an important export of local goods: However, it is evid-
ent that the agricultural district, which is now cultivated
formerly engaged in the conveyance of goods by road and i
and colonisation, will furnish a considerable quantity ¢
transport. B

33) Kansk. Il class station (941 v. trom Krivoshehé
Chelidbinsk). It is situated near the district town of/Kans
zovernment. There is a medical and feeding stationdor
seeomadation of settlers bound for the Kansk distriet,/'where lands are
Tfor & populatlon of 40,000. It is also the residence ot an uﬁlohl ontm:ted
‘with the regulation of the emigration movement. &7,
. - The tewn of Kansk stands on melestmowfe dver Kan, which
‘not navigable, and on the great Siberian hlglwap; (&QWN lat.. 28°2%0
long; pop. 7.504; 4,452 males, 3,022 iemales)‘ !n"w iachadpd :
founded on this site, which afterwards m L
1823, it ranked among the towns of the XW
situated on a level spot, which is oi;w,” flowed
the Kan. It oonza.ins 534 houses, of which on
bemg of woodjndnf pne: ;
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was burnt down in 1898 and has not yet been . rebuilt; and a Jewish synag-
ogue. The schools are three in number: a school with two classes for boys.
and two public schools with one class for boys and girls. In 1897, the Society
for the Promotion of Elementary Education opened its operations and establish-
ed a public library. The principal occupation of the inhabitants is agricul-
ture, carried on over a vast area belonging to the citizens, comprising 21,800
desiatins. Manufactures and industry stand at a very low level; there are
2 tallow-boileries, 6 tanneries and a soap and 2 candle manufaetories. N

View of the town of Kansk.

fairs are held iu the town, but only markets twice a week. A town bank
with a capital of R. 80,000 is located in the townhall. The annual town expend-
iture - rises to R. 80,000. Since numerous lots of land have been settled in
the district, the town has also improved, having become a centre whence
grain and hay are exported by rail towards IrkGtsk. There has recently
ariseu an export of pressed hay to the Irkiatsk government.

® The wvisit of the present Kmperor Nicholas Il to Kansk in 1801 was an
auspicions event fn the history of the town.

His Majesty arrived at Kansk at 8 o'clock in the evening onthe 290 June,
passing throngh a stone arch specially built for His reception. Two chapels
stand at the two ends of the arch; one is consecrated to Saints Cosmo and
Damian, the other to St. Nicholas the Miracle-worker. The arch is surmounted
by two spires, adorned by Imperial Eagles. This handsome edifice is visible
at a great distance from the railway line.

During the year 1898, the quantity of grain, exported to the East from
the region surrounding the station, amounted to 227684 puds, ineluding

100,781 puds of oats, 79,920 puds of wheat flour and 25736 puds of rye floure

Within 2 versts of the station, the line crosses the river Kan by a bridge
withaa opening of 120 sazhens, consisting of three spans of 40 sazhens each.
W 8 %y ,
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From Kansk to Taishét, between the rivers Kan and Birusa, the line runs
for a distance of 158 verst through an immense coalfieed which is not yet
worked.

34) Ilanskdaya. IV class station (967 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2,220 v.
from Chelidbinsk) A church in honour of St. Alexander N#vsky is in pro-
cess of construction near the station, at the cost of the Emperor Alexander
{1 fund.

The village of Ilinskoye, ot the Kansk district (pop. 874), is situated close
by on the Great Siberian highway near the small river Ilanka. Agriculture
is the chief pursuit of the inhabitants. A church of the Purification was
erected in 1822 by Count Sperdnsky, Governor General of Siberia, at the cost
of the Emperor Alexander 1. There is a parish school.

Within 2 versts of the station, the line crosses the river Ilinka by a
wooden bridge of 10 sazhens and passes over the watershed ;of the rivers
[lanka and Poima, tributaries of the Biritsa.

35) Ingéash. \ class station (994 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2326 v. from
Cheliabinsk). The settiement of the same name is situated at a distance of
2 versts on the great Siberian highway, in the Kansk district (pop.674). The

inhabitants occupy themselves mainly with agriculture. Within 6 versts of

the station, the line spans the Péima by ar iron bridge of 25 sazhens (at

Bridge over the Kan,

the 1000 v.) and further on, running along the watershed of the rivers Péima
and Tina, crosses the latter near the station of Tinskaya by a wooden bridge
of 24 sazhens.
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36) Tinskaya. V class station (1,019 v. from Krivoshehékovo, 2,326 v.
from Chelidbinsk). The village of Tiny stands 3 versts from the station, on
the Great Siberian highway, in the Kansk district (pop. 804). It contains a
church  of the Presentation, a school with one class, and a village board, .
The inhabitants are principally engaged in agriculture. Here a deputation
from the peasants offered a silver dish with bread and salt to the present
Emperor Nicholas II when, as Heir Apparent to the throne, he traversed
Siberia in 1891.

Further, the line runs across the watershed of the rivers Tina and Resh-
éta and, after having crossed the latter at the 1039 verst by a wooden
bridge of 12 sazhens, ascends by maximum grades through a difficult seetion
to the next watershed of the rivers Reshéty and Cheremshanka.

37) Kliuchinskaya. V class station. Buffet. (1049 v. from Krivoshehé-
kovo, 2381 v. from Chelidbinsk). The settlement of Kliuchi of the Kansk
district, with a population of 207 is situated 2 versts from the Siberian highway.
Agriculture is the chief pursuit of the inhabitants.

In 1898, the quantity of grain conveyed from this station to the Rast,
mainly to Tultn, was 169,495 puds, including 160,488 puds of wheat flour. Leav-
ing the station of Kliuchinskaya situated at a high point of the watershed, the
line, for a distance of 15 versts, runs along the broken summit of the watershed
and crossing the river Cheremshdnka at the 1,066 verst by a wooden bridge
of 9 sazhens, passes over the steep watershed and descends by maximum
grades to the river Cheremkovka, spanning it near the station of Yurta by
a wooden bridge of 18 sazhens.

38) Yurty. V class station (1071 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2,403 v. from
Chelidabinsk). The settlement Polovina-Cheremkovskoe of the Kansk district
lies in close proximity to the station, on the Great Siberian highway, (pop.
470). The inhabitants occupy themselves mainly with agriculture. Leaving
the station, the line passes again over the Cheremkdivka by a wooden bridge
of 17Y4 sazhens, and continues along the valley of the Biriusa, crossing the

latter at 1,087 versts from Krivoshchékovo by an iron bridge with a opening

of 160 sazhens, consisting of four spans of 40 sazhens. each. The river Biriisa

- rises in the Saydn chain and has atotal length of about 400 versts: it is cele-

brated for the richness of its gold mines occuring along its upper reaches.

The village of Kontérskoe of the Kansk district (pop. 913) is situated
within 5 versts of the railway, on the Biritisa and the Great Siberian highway
on the frontier of the Irkutsk government. The village contains a church of

'St. Nicholas, a school and several shops. On the 29 June, 1891, His Imperial

Majesty the present Emperer Nicholas Il halted here and visited the church and

“made a donation of R. 100. An inscription on a bronze plate fitted to the
,chm'oh wall remains as a memorial of this visit.

‘Passing the Biriusa, the line runs over the small watershed of the rivers ©

& =.Bi!'i\&sa and Taishét, and spans the latter by a wooden bridge of 15 sazhens.

39) Taishét. Il class station. Buffet. (1,099 v. from Krivoshchékovo,

‘3;481 v, from Chelidbinsk). There is a medical and feeding station eclose by,
: the regtstrttlon of the emlglants and their dnstnbutlon in the lands_




- are about 60 trading firms. The markeﬁ

RO 5. W " GUIDE T0 THE GREAT SIRERIAN mu.w;ﬁ',i: et

the railway, occupied itself with the carriage of goods by x-cmd is now engagod
in agrwnlture The whole distance from Taishét to Nizhnetdinsk, compnsmg
the watershed of the Biriusa and Udda, with a length of 150 versts, is covered
with taiga. The population is principally collected in the lands bordering upun
the highway; agriculture is yet- undeveloped. \

From here, the line resumes its course along the watershed, descending
slightly to the river Okulshét and erossing it by a wooden bmdge of 22 sa-
zhens. Leaving the watershed, the line descends by maximum grades towards
the Bairénovka and passes over it by a wooden bridge.

40) Baironévka. V class station (1,119 v.from Kmothnékovo. 2,451 .
from Chelidbinsk). Within 15 versts of the station, is the village of Bairdn-
ovskoe, in the Nizhnendinsk district (pop. 900); it is situated on both sides
of the Baironovka near the Great Siberian highway. The village has a wooden
church in honour of the Archangel Michael, and a parish school. The inhabit-
ants are engaged iu agriculture and trapping. £

41) Razgon. V class station (1.146 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2,476'v. from
Chelidbinsk). Is situated within 10 versts of the settlement of Razgénnoe
with a population of 50.

Hence, the line proceeds by maximum grades towards the Mokhoviya,
spanning this river by a wooden bridge of 14 sazhens (1,157 v). Furtheron. it
crosses the Alzamdi by a wooden bridge of 12 sazhens.

42) Alzamai. V class station (1,165 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 269 v. fram
Chelidbinsk). The village of Alzamidi, in the Nizhnetdinsk distriet (pop. 840)
stands in the vieinity, near the river of the same name, on the Siberiun
highway. The village contains a wooden church in honour of St Innocent of
Irkutsk, a school with one class, a village board and a hospital with 5 beds,
and is the residence of a doctor. The inhabitants oceupy themsel\es with
agriculture and also with hunting.

From the station of Alzamadi to Zamzor, the line
country, traversing the rivers Kosdi-Gorod at the 1,1
at the 1,182 verst, by bridges of 20 and 10 sazhens.

43) Zamzor, V class station. Buffet. (1,184 v, fmﬁﬁrwoshchékovo 2,516 v.
from Chelidabinsk). The settlement of Zamzor m,thor\whneudmsk distriet
(pop. 225) stands next the station, situated in proximity to the dtstrwt town
of Nizhneudinsk in the Irkutsk government (54555,'\\' lat., 50'B. lnmz)
standing on the right bank of the Udi and the q&m b[bernm 'h!ghw
stockaded post named Udinskaya was built in 1 %n the site of the present
town. In 1783, it was converted into the town of Nizhnefidinsk. The town is
picturesquely situated, surrounded by rocky mountains. fomung th’econti’mm« .,w
tion of the Sayéin ridge; the navigable river Uddfwith a breadth of 200 sazh-

-ens, flows through the town. The census of 1807 shewed a population of

% 803 (3,355 males, 2448 females). There are two stone churchm' the. cathe:
“dral of the Ascension and the church of the Resurrection, &nda Jewish praym\
house. Schools: town school with two classes, “the parish Michael vschom
W;]tb Ione class, pmparatory 8} mnasium tor gu'ls wnh three dasses,. parish
schoo ‘ % i &

ke taws Soulais 570 hauees, the bn d

"

mhq ﬁsxnuf.:h a level
t, and Algashét
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very slowly: according to the latest statistics, its population fell to 4,500 since
the opening of traffic on the Siberian Railway.

In 1891, the town was visited hy His Imperial Majesty, the Emperor Ni-
cholas II, then Heir Apparent to the throne. The inhabitants of the town
erected a (riumphal arch for the reception of the Imperial traveller, which
exists to the presenl day. As a memorial of this historical event, prayers for
the precious health of the Kmperor are pronounced every year near the arch
on the 27 July.

The river Udd, on which the town stands, takes its rise in the south-
western part of the Nizhneudinsk district, on the ridge of Yerik-Targak-Taigd;
it has a sandy and rocky bottom and a swift current. It is navigable from
Nizhneudinsk and its valley contains minerals. At distances of 18 and 100
versts above Nizhnetdinsk, its banks contain large caves. Ten versts beyond
the town, the river flows through a narrow, gorge-like valley where it receives
on the left the small river Uk, forming 12 cataracts from its headwaters
to its mouth, where it falls into the Udd. The first two cascades fall from &
height of 2 sazhens, near a small river of the same name, on the Siberian
highway. There is a school with one class.

Further on, the line runs through a level country with a slight ascent.
At the 1,188 verst, it passes over the Zamzdr by a wooden bridge of 26 sazhens,
at the 1,196 verst, it crosses the
river Martynovka and, approaching
the next station, spans the Kamyshét
by a wooden bridge of 14 sazhens.

44) Kamyshét. IV class sta-
tion. Buffet. (1205 v. from Krivosh-
chékovo, 2,537 v. from Chelidbinsk).
Near the station, on the great Sibe-
rian highway, is the settlement of
Kamyshétskoe, with a population of
200 and a cementworks, belonging
to a Russo-Dutch joint stock compa-
ny, built in 1895 and 1896

Local lime, marl and clay, burn-
ed with charcoal are employed for
the production of cement. The works
is provided with a chemical and
mechanical laboratory, four locomo-
biles of 160 H. P., a dyname engine
for electric lighting and a machiuery
and cooper’'s shop. The produce of
two furnaces on the Liban system
amounts to 45,000 barrels annually,
and could be doubled. Cliffs on the bank of the Uda.

The cement has been tested
in the laboratory of the Institute for Railway Engineers and declared to be good.

Leaving the station of Kamyshét, the line crogses the rivers Beriozovaya
and Kdmennaya by bridges of 12 and 10 sazhens each and, by maximum
grades of 0.15, reaches the watershed of the rivers Beriozovaya and Mira.

45) Uk. V class station, (1,222 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2,554 v. from
Chelidbinsk). The village of Uk, in the Nizhneudinsk district (pop. 900) stands

0y ] 194
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on the Siberian highway, near the riger Uk. There is a wooden church of
St. George the Victorious, built in 1895, and a parish school. The population
gets its livelihood by agriculture. Within a verst and a half of the station,
the line traverses the Uk by a bridge of 10 sazhens: Further on,it ascends
a low watershed and passing over its summit descends by maximum grades
of 0.15 to the valley of the river Mira, crossing tbe latter by a stone bridge
of 20 sazhens (1,236 v.) Spanning the river Kuridt at the 1,341 verst, by a
wooden bridge of 8 sazhens, the line runs through a level counfry and reach-
es the station of Nizhneudinskaya.

46) Nizhneudinskaya. IIl
class station. Buffet. (1248 v. from
Krivoshehékovo, 2580 v. from Che-
lidbinsk). The total height of the
waterfall is 15 saghens and its
breadth 20 sazhens

The traffic to the East having
been only recently opened, it is im-
possible to ascertain the commercial
operations of the station, but 1t may
be censidered as certain that the
progressive colonisation of the taigéa
and the iniluence of the railway will
contribute to the development of
agriculture in the Nizhneidinsk
district, although the conditions of
the soil are less. favourable than
in that of Kansk.

From Nizhnetdinsk onwards,
the country is more level. stretch-
ing to the station of Zima for a di-
stance of 240 versts. The grades
occurring on this section of the rail-

Waterfall on.the river UK. way are .009, and the curves have a
radius of 250 sazhens.

Between the station of Nizhnetidinskaya and that of Khingui. the line
first crosses the small watershed of the rivers Kuridt and Uda and then rises
to the station of Khingui. In the valley of the Uds, there are three engineer-
ing works: a stone bridge of 12 sazhens, at the 1254 verst, spanning the riv-
er Rubdkhina: an iron bridge over the Udd at the 1255 verst, having an
opening of 180 sazhens with two spans of 40 sazhens and two of 50 sazhens:
and a wooden bridge of 12 sazhens at the 1257 verst.

47, Khingui. V class station (1270 v. from Krivoshehékovo, 2612 v from
Cheliabinsk). The village of Khingii is 5 versts from the station and is sit-
uated on the Siberian highway, in the Nizhneadinsk district (pop. 400). 1t
contains a wooden church and a reading school.

48) Khudoyelan. V class station. Buffet. (1292 v. from Krivoshehékovo,
2658 from Chelidbinsk). The village of Khudoyeldnskoe, in the Nizhneudinsk
district, stands close by on the Siberian highway, (pop. 500). It has a wooden
church in honour of St. Nicholas the Miracle-worker. and a parish scheool.

. 4,!?' .Kurzan. V class station (1326 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2658 v. from
Cheliabinsk). At a distance of § versts, the village of Trakiovo-Kurzdnskoe, in
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the Nizhneudinsk district {pop. 370) is situated on the Siberian highway. The
 village possesses a wooden church and a school with one class.

Hence the line descends to the river Saur, spanning it at the 1335 verst
by a wooden bridge of 18 sazhens and further, having passed over the summit
of a low watershed, descends from the 1354 verst to the Kurzin, crossing
this river by a wooden bridge with an opening of 30 sazhens. The station of
Tulin stands within three versts of the bridge.

50) Tulun. III class station. Buffet. (1357 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 268% v.
from Chelidbinsk).

There is a medical and feeding station near the railway for the l‘OE‘l\tHl-
tion and distribution of the emigrants in the localities allotted for colonisa-
tion in the Nizhnetdinsk district. It is also the residence of an official en-
‘trusted with the regulation of the emigration movement.

The large trading village of Tulinovskoe, in the Nizhneudinsk district,
is situated ata distance of four versts, on the Great Siberian highway, near
the small stream Tulunchik and the river Uvi; it numbers 660 houses and a
population exceeding 5,000. The village contains a wooden church in honour
of the Intercession of the Holy Virgin, a school with two classes for boys
and one with one class for girls; a poorhouse founded out of the fund of the
church patronage, a reception room for outpatients, a chemist's shop, a fire
brigade and a village board. The inhabitants occupy themselves with agricul-
ture, carriage of goods by road and trade. There are over 70 trading firms
in the willage with a yearly business exceeding R. 3,000,000. The opening
of traffic on the Siberian main line has brought a great change in the
modes of trade, as practised for some hundred years past, and delivered the
small trading centres from their former dependence on the large towns and
the leading firms, contributing also to the development of the commercial
operations of this village. At present, the village of Tulunovskoe constitutes an
important centre of trade and export, whence various goods, avoiding Irkuatsk,
are despatched to the Angard and further to the landing-stages on the Léna,
Ust-Kuat or Zhigalov in order to supply the demand of the Léna gold-mining
industry. This route is also taken by the workmen who, sometimes forming
bodies of about 10,000 men, go to the gold mines. The fertile district within
range of the railway supplies part of the grain exported to Irkutsk. In 1898,
upwards of 18,000 puds of grain, mainly wheat, were forwarded from here
to the East.

In June, 1891, the village of Tulinovskoe was honoured by the visit of
- His Imperial Majesty, the present Emperor Nicholas II. A triumphal arch,
which was erected for the mceptlon of the Imperial traveller, remains as a
~ memorial of this visit,

From the station of Tuliin, standing on the watershed of the rivers Kur-

k 5 'zé.n and Uy4, the line approaches the latter, crossing it by an iron bridge of
80 sazhens with two spans of 40 sazhens each. (1363 v.. The river Uya or

lya, tributary Qf the Okd, falling into the Angard, has a total length of 600
~versts; it is available for rafts and flows through a narrow and wooded val-
ley; mmera.l sptmgs oceur along its upper waters on the northern slopes nf
t!me Saydn mountains.

51) Azéi. V class sﬁtmn (1876 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2708 v, from

Lhel.l&binsk) Leﬁvmg this station, the line runs through a level country,
Wez‘sigg two mnall woedsen bridges of 10 sazhens each (1382 v. and 1386 v)\.

a\us smmn. \\&%Q e tmm \hwos\\ehékovo. 2?82 DT
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from Chelidbinsk). The village of Sheragul is situated in the Nizhneudinsk
district, within 6 versts of the station, on the Great Siberian highway. It
numbers 320 houses and a population of 1,800. The village possesses a wooden
church of the Archistrategus Michael, a sehool with one elass and a parish
school. Agriculture is the chief industry of the inhabitants. In June, 1891, His
Imperial Majesty, the present Emperor NicholasII, on His way from the Far
East, passed the night in the house of the merchant Cheremnykh which, in
commemoration of this visit, was given by its owner for the ostablishment
of a parish school under the control of the Ministry of Public Education,

Hence the line rises to a low watershed, and then descends to the stream
Ili, crossing it at the 1407 verst by a wooden bridge with an opening of 6
sazhens and an altitude of 5 sazhens. After having reached the watershed,
the line proceeds to the next station.

53) Kuitun. V class station. Buffet. (1431 v. from Krivoshehékovo, 2763 v,
from Chelidbinsk).

The village of Kuitin, in the Nizhneudinsk distriet, is at a distance of 3
versts, on the Great Siberian highway; it contains 320 houses and a popula-
tion of 2,350. The village received its name from cold springs called ,Kuitan®,
which in the Buriat language means ,eold®. It has a church in honour of the
Prophet Elias, a parish school with two classes and a village board. Its inhah-
itants are engaged in agriculture. Hence the line proceeds along the summit
of the watershed and, having traversed half of the distance to the next sta-
tion, descends to the river Kimiltéi. 4

54) Kimiltéi. (1461 v. from Kriveshchékovo, 2793 v. from Chelidbinsk).
The large trading village of Kimiltéi of the Nizhneudinsk district, lies al a
distanee of 10 versts from the station (houses 455; pop. 3,300). It contains a
large stone church of fine architecture in honour of St. Nicholas the Miracle-
worker, a Jewish prayer-house, a school with two classes and parallel divi-
sions, a parish school and village board. The population carries on trade and
agriculture.

Within 2 versts of the station, the line crosses the Kimiltéi by a wooden
bridge of 20 sazhens, and further ascends the watershed of the rivers Kimil-
téi and Oka, having an altitude of 36 sazhens. Leaving the watershed, the
line reaches the station of Zima; whence it runs through mountainous districts.

55) Zimad. 11T class station. Buffet. (1487 v, from Krivoshchékovo, 2819 v.
from Chelidbinsk). Near the station a wooden ¢hureh was built at the cost
of the Emperor Alexander III fund in honour 31 St Theodor Tiron, and con-
secrated on the 14 May, 1898,

Within 5 versts of the station, is the largd‘ r&dmg,' village of Almmﬂme
situated at the junction of the rivers Zima and' Oka, on the great Sfbenan v
highway: it belongs to the Balaginsk district and has 464 houses and a popu-
iation of 2,860. 1t contains a church, a parish school with one class, a reading
school for girls, a poorhouse and village board. The inhabitants are mainly
engaged in agriculture. Among them there are about 600 sectarians, the des-
cendants of those who were exiled to this place on account of their religion

at the beginning of the XIX century. On the 26 June, 1891, the village was
honoured by the visit of the present Emperor Nicholas 1L, then Heir Apparent to

the throne, on his way from the Far East. An euhibiﬁon of agricultural and
other products of the Balaginsk district was orga.mnd for the arrival of His
Majesty. A deputation from the local peasants offered His Majesty a folded
image, representmg the Holy Virgm and the Sﬁnts Hmocent and Nicholas
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the Miracle-worker. Anothex deputation from the local Buriits pl'esented to .
the Emperor a model of a Buriat yurta, cast in silver.

Within 3 versts of the station, the line crosses the river Ok& by an iron
bridge of 220 sazhens with two spans of 50 sazhens and three of 40 sazhens each.

The river Oka, which is a tributary of the Angard, has a total length of
750 versts; its current is very rapid, especially at its source. From its junc-
tion with the Zima, the river is fit for rafting, becoming navigable only with-
in 40 versts of its mouth. The basin of this river is richly provided with
coal beds, which have been explored by the mining Engineers Obruchev and
Bogdangvich. The quality and the formation of the coal is the same as in
the Moscow basin. According to the investigations of Bogdandvich, the atten-
tion of promotors should be drawn to deposits of alum copperas. Tron copper-
as protrudes through seams of clay. The local inhabitants noticed long ago
that the water possessed the property of blackening tanned skins. During the
last epidemic of cholera, copperas earth was used for disinfecting. Many
among the population living along this river suffer from goitre. :

Down the river Okd, at the spot where it is crossed by the railway line,
near the village of Burliksk, are  painted stones“ or cliffs standing on the
bank adorned with numerous designs of riders, horses and cattle. Here are
also situated famous grindstone quarries. From the river Okd onwards, the
country assumes a more broken surface, retaining this character for a di-
stance of 138 versts, to the station of Polovina. Here, the line is construeted
according to specifications used in mountainous sections. Beginning its ascent
from the valley of the Okd, the line passes over the high watershed of the
rivers Oka and Tyrét and, after having crossed the latter by a wooden bridge
of 10 sazhens (1515 v.), rises to the high watershed of the rivers Tyrét and Unga.

56) Tyrét. V class station. Buffet. (1518 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2840 v.
from Chelidbinsk). The large village of' Tyrét, in the Balaginsk distriet, is
situated within 3 versts of the station, on the Siberian highway (houses 180,
pop. 860).

Formerly this village belonged to the Buriat native board of the Bala-
gzansk district, which consisted of 24 families, forming a popnlation of 17,000
distributed in 150 villages throughout the territory between the rivers Oka
and Zalaréya, covering a superficial area of 670,000 desiatins. Since 1898, the
village of Tyrét, permanently settled by Christian Buriits, has been subjected
to the administrative rules generally adopted for peasants. There is a small
wooden church and a parish school.

On the 26 June, 1891, the village was honoured by the visit of His Im-
perial Majesty, the present Emperor Nicholas II. His Majesty was greeted by

‘.‘the priest of the missionary church with images and holy banners; after

"i

having visited the church, where sang a chorus of pupils from the Tyrét
native missionary school, His Majesty made a donation of R. 100 for the
church and R. 200 for the. teacher of the missionary school. ;
From the station of Tyrét, the line descends by a steep grade to the
ngi, spannlng this river at the 1523 verst by a wooden bridge of 25 sazhens,
and further on rises to the high watershed of the rivers Ungi.and Sheragiil,
“which is intersected by ravines. Leaving its summit, the line crosses the -
Shomgul (1536 v.) by a wooden bridge of 8 sazhens and, passing again over
the low watershed of the rivers Sheragil and 7alan, on its way down W ards

‘raql,chop the stat on of Zalari. ) L&

: ‘57)\!&1;1'1. ?_V ciass stahon Buﬂbt (1540 v, from Knvoshchaknvo 28‘72x
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. from Cheliabinsk). The trading village of Zalarinskoe is near the station, on
the river Zalari and the great Siberian highway (houses 283, pop. 1650); it
belongs to the Balagdnsk district. The village contains a small but ancient
church of St. Nicholas the Miracle-worker, parish schools with one class for
boys and girls, a reading school built at the cost of the Irkttsk Diocesan

“\Teac hing Council, and a village board. On the 25 June, 1801, His Imperial Maje-
sty. the present Emperor Nicholas II passed the night in this village. Within
two versts of the station, the line runs over the river Zalari by a wooden bridge
of 30 sazhens, and ascends to the watershed of the rivers Zalari and Kutulik.

58) Golovinskaya. V class station. (1560 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 2892 v,
from Chelidabinsk). The village of Golovinskoe is situated within 3 versts of
the station (houses 31; pop. 172), on the Great Siberian highwey, in the Ba-
Jagansk district. The population consists of former Cossacks of the Balagénsk
district. The village contains a chapel.

From here, the line gradually descends to the river Kutulik; coal beds
oceur throughout its entire course.

59) Kutulik. V class station. (1580 v. from Kmnshohel\ow 2012 v. from
Chelidabinsk). The. trading village of Kutulikskoe in the Balaginsk district
(houses 276, pop. 1996) lies within 6 versts of the station, on the great Sibe-
rian highway, near the river Kutulik. It possesses a wooden church of John
the Baptist, three parish schools, a school for boys with one class, one for
girls with one class, and a second class school for parish sghool teachers
with one class. Carpentry and turnery workshops are attached to the schools.
The chief industries of the population are agriculture and farming. Many of
the inhabitants are afflicted with goitre. ;

Within 3 versts of the station, the line spans the Kutulik by a bridge
of 10 sazhens and, further on, the Nota by a short wooden bridge, on its
way to the watershed of the rivers Nota and Cheremkoévka.

60) Cheremkovo. V class station. Buffet. (1601 v. from Krivoshehékovo,
2033 v. from Chelidbinsk). The large trading village of Cheremkdvo is situa-
ted in the Balagansk district, in proximity to the station, on the great Sibe-
rian highway (houses 349, pop. 2,276). It contains a stone church of St. Nicho-
las the Miracle-worker, a parish school with two classes, a school for girls
with one class, and a reading school attached to the chureh, a village
board. dispensary for outpatients, poorhouse, several shops and stores.
Markets are held every day; a lively trade is carried on in October before
the Teast of Our Lady of Kazan. The sphere of mﬂuence of the markets
extends to a radius of about 100 versts.

As far as concerns agriculture and farming, this vnllage and the .whole j
volost of Cheremkdvo play an important part in the Irkutsk government. .

The land bordering on the railway line, allotted for the use of the pea-
sants and occupied by their dwellings, contains rich coal beds, which are
very important on account of their position near the railway line and to the
basin of the Angard, the latter being also plentifully provided with minerals. =

The coal beds are worked partly by Engineer Mirkévioh. who has attempt- ¢
ed to supply the Midsiberian railway with mineral fuel. The chemical -
analysis of the coal shews the following results: volatile matters 44.17-(49.24). o
residue 5:) 49 (50.76), carbon 44.41 (47.72), ash 1108 cs,m) snlphur 042 (om),:
carbon 63,09 (71.84), hydrogen 5.65 (6.05). :

Withii*2 versts of the station, the line crosses tho Charemkdvka bf MQ;
wooden bndge of @sazhens snd ascends w tha wntm

4
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Angard and its tributary the Bélaya; on the watershed (1610 v,), the line
traverses the frontier of the Balaginsk and Irkutsk district.

61) Polovina. Il class station. Buffet. (1525 v. from Krivoshehékovo,
2945 v. from Chelidbinsk) A wooden church in honour of St. Basil the Great
is being built at the station at the cost of the Emperor Alexander III fund.

The village of Polovinnaya, in the Irkutsk district, lies elose by, on the
Great Siberian highway (houses 300).

Hence the line descends to the Bélaya, left tributary of the Angara, and
crosses it by an iron bridge with an opening of 100 sazhens, composed ,of
four spans of 25 sazhens each.

The country here becomes level, and the specifications adopted for the
construction of the railway from the station to Irkitsk are such as are gener-
ally used for foot-hill sections.

On the right bank of the Bélaya, opposite the village of Maliinskoe and
‘near the villages of Uzky Lug and Baddiskaya, occur seams 'of fire-clay.
The one found at a depth of 5 to 7 arshins is of a particularly good quality,
being white and greasy like pure kaolin. The clay obtained from this deposit
resembles the best kinds of Belgian clay trom the environs of Anden near
Nemours. As regards its quality, properties and chemical formation, the
crystalline kaolin found at Usky Lug is very much like the well-known clay

Village of Télma.

in the Borovichi district of the Novgorod government. In 1869, the Irkutsk
merchant Perevilov established a china and earthenware manufactory for
the exploitation of these deposits. At the present time, the Khaitin manufactory
situated at the mouth of the Khaitd, falling into the Bélaya, at a distance
of 9 versts from the station, is under the management of the Siberian Com-
pany for the production of china, earthenware, glass and pottery.

The annual output of the manufactory amounts on an average to a value
of R. 398,576,
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$2) Madlta. V class station (1646 v. from Krivoshehékovo, 2975 v. from
Chelidbinsk). Near the station stands, the large trading village of Maltinskoe
in the Irkutsk district, on the great Siberian highway and on the river
Bélaya. There are a stone church of the Ascensivn, parish school with one
class, poorhouse and village board.

According to information supplied by Mining Engineer Bogdanovich,
former director of the works of the Midsiberian mining party. the country
stretching from the river Bélaya towards Irkutsk along the upper reaches oi

Village of Télma. Distillery and cloth manufactory.

the Khaitid, Télma and the tributaries of the Kitoi, presents a vast swampy
taiga, which has as vet been hardly explored; however, it may be supposed
that it is plentifully provided with minerals and metals. The coal-field com-
mences in the valley of the Maltinka and embraces an immense area on
both sides of the Angari.

Within 2 versts of the station, the line spans the Maltinka by a wooden
bridge of 6 sazhens and, passing over the watershed, crosses the swampy
river Skipidarka or Usdlka by a wooden bridge of 6 sazhens; further on, a.
bridge of 10 sazhens spansthe Telminka, from which the line rises 'to a low
watershed.

63) Telma. V class station. Buffet. (1667 v, from Krivoshchékovo, 2093 v.
from Chelidbinsk). The trading village of Telminskoe (pop. 3.000) is situated
in proximity to the station, on the left bank of the Angard at its junection
with the Telminka, in the Irkatsk district. It contains a stone church in
honour of Our Lady of Kazin, a village board, the Alexander school with two
classes, a parish school for girls with one class, a poorhouse and a dxspens—
ary room for outpatients.

Here, are the Télma cloth manufactory, glass-works and distilleries,
belonging to Belugolévy. The factory has existed since the beginning of the
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XVIIl century, and formed first the property of the State, then that of the
Irktsk comissariat and, only in 1862, became a private concern. The manu-
factory is supplied with wool -from the Transbaikal region, with Glauber's
salt from the Barguzinsk lakes, and with dyes from Russia. The annual
production of cloth amounts to a value of R. 50,000 to 60,000.

A model school, with two classes“for boys and girls, is attached to the
factory. Glass of various sizes from 44 to 624 vershoks, and also other
class wares are made in the works.

The cloth manufactory and the glass works, having been in operation
for a period of over 150 years, testify to the fact that manufacture apd
industry may be succestully carried on in Siberia.

Within 7 versts of the village of Télma, down the Angara, at som:
distance from the Siberian highway, lies the village of Usdélie (pop. 5,000)
with the famous State salterns, which give a commercial importance to this
village. The biines worked by means of pit-holes are on the leit bank of the
Angard and on the island of Varnichnoe, where the buildings of the works
are situated. The annual output of salt amounts to 300,000. The salt springs
issue from deposits of lime, clay and calcareous slates.

Mgnastery of the Ascension (phot. by Gavrilov),

Throughout the Télma volost on the Angard and especially in Usdilie,
coitre is of frequent occurrence,

From the Télma station, the line reaches the Kitoi (left tributary of the
Angard) by a light grade, erossing theriver by an iron bridge with an open-
ing of 70 sazhens, having a span of 40 sazhens, and two smaller ones of
15 sazhens each. Further on, the line ascends to the next station.

The Kit6i rises on spurs of the Saydn ridge. The river is 240 versts
long and 80 sazhens wide; the current is rapid, being navigable only in its
lower reaches. Throughout its course, its banks are considered to be rich in
gold.
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64) Sukhovskaya. V class station. (1691 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 3020 v.
from Cheliibinsk). The village of Sukhovskaya (pop. 300) is situated near
the station on the Great Siberian highway and on the left bank of the
Angara. There are a church, school and village board.

Naphtha has been found in the neighbourhood of the village, on the
bhank of the Angard, amidst carboniferaus strata containing a large percentage
of hydrogen

Monastery of the Ascension. Relics of St. Innocent, first Bishop of Irkitsk (phot. by Shukachéy).

From the station, the line runs along a slope on the left side of the
Angara, crossing its small tributaries, the Yelovka, by a wooden bridge of
7 sazhens and the Mechétly one of 10 sazhens.

65) Innokéntievskaya. Il class station. Buftet. (1715 v. from Krivo-
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shehekovo, 3044 v, from Chelidbinsk). The station received its name in honour
of St. Innocent, Archbishop of Irkutsk, the first Miracle-worker of Siberia.

Near the station, on the left bank ofthe Angard, within 4 versts of Irkutsk
is situated the St. Innocent firat-class monastery of the Ascension, created
in 1672 by licence of Cornelius, Metropolitan of Tobdlsk, by the monk Gera-
sim: the first wooden church was founded at the same time in honour of the
Holy Tmage of Our Saviour.

The monastery played an active part in the civilising mission to the
FHast. In 1726, a Russo-Mongolian sehool was added to it. The Irkitsk diocese
was ereated in 1727, and St. Innocent appointed Archbishop.

St Innocent (John Kulehitsky) was born in Little Russia in the govern-
ment of Chernigov. Having been arch-monk in the fleet, and a student at the
Slavo-Latin Academy of Moscow, he was appointed Bishop of Pereydslavl and
attached to the ecclesiastical mission to Pekin, in the presence of the Emperor
Peter I, by the Metropolitan Stephen Yavorsky, the Archbishop Theodosius
Yandvsky aud Theophanes Prokdépovieh. He was named Archbishop of [rkutsk
on the 15 January, 1727, and died on the 27 November, 1731. St. Innocent was
buried under the altar of the Tikhvin church, in the monastery of the Ascen-
sion. His remains were examined on the 29 January, 1801, by the Bishops
Benjamin of Irkatsk and Justin of Sviazh, and according to an ukaz given
by the Synod on the 1 December, 1804, they were declared to be holy; they

View of Irkitsk (phot. by Yastrémbsky).

were transported and exhibited for the veneration of the public on the 9 Fe-
“bruary, 1805. The rich monastery, which possesses six churches, including
the cathedral of the Ascension and of the Assumption, contains a silver
shrine with the relics of the first Miracle-worker of Siberia; it is surrounded
by a stone wall with towers and is under the control of the Vicar of Irkitsk.
On the 17 June 1873, the monastery was visited by his Imperial Highness

the Grand Duke Alexis Alexdndrovich, and on the 24 .June, 1891, by the pre-
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.sent Emperor Nicholas II, then Heir Apparent to the throne. Attended by his
suite and Bishop Benjamin, the Tsesarévich was greeted at the entrance
eate by the superior of the monastery and the fraternity with ringing of
bells and chanting of prayers in honour of St. Innocent.

After having listened to the singing, the Tsesarévich knelt at the
shrine of the Siberian Saint, kissed the relics and received the image of St.
Innocent. presented to him by Agathangelus, Vicar of Irkitsk. At the same
time, a deputation from Shaman Buriats expressed the desire of 250 men to
adopt the orthodox religion and to receive the nmame of Nicholas in comme-
moration of the Tsesarévich’s visit to Siberia, which was thus to be preser-
ved in the memory of their descendants. The Imperial traveller graciouly
acceded to this request.

Running towards Irkutsk, the line at the 1720 verst crosses the Irkuat,
left tributary of the Angard, by a wooden bridge of 120 sazhens.

From the right bank of the Irkat, commences the Irkatsk-Baikal branch,
which belongs to the Transbaikal railway line. Proceeding from the Irkut to
the left bank of the Angard, the line reaches the suburb of Glazkovskoe,
lving opposite Irkutsk.

66) Irkutsk. Buffet. (1722 v. from Krivoshehékovo, 3052 v, from (helig-
binsk). The station is situated within 2 versts of the iron bridge over the
Irkut, in Glazkovskoe, the suburb of Irkatsk, and is conneeted with the town
by the pontoon bridge of the Tsesarévich Nicholas.

Irkutsk. is a government town and the administrative centre of the
Irkatsk region which, under a Governor-General, comprises the Yeniséisk and
Irkatsk governments and the Yakutsk territory.

The town lies on the
right bank of the Angara,
opposite the mouth of
the Irkat (52°17' N. lat,
124°51, E. long.) at an
absolute height of 1,360
feet, in a dry and level
country. Within the li-
mits of the town. the
Angari receives the ri-
ver Ushakovka, which
separates the central
part of the town from
the suburb of Znimen-
skoe and the suburb
inhabited by the working

Irkitsk. Cathedral of Our Lady of Kazén. class. The suburb of

o Glazkovskoe is on the
left side of the Angard. The census of 1897 shewed a total population of
51,434 (26,517 males, 24,917 females). As regards its population, Irkatsk holds
the second place throughout Siberia, yielding precedence only to the town
of Tomsk. The town was founded in 1652, when the son of a noble, [vin
Pakhobov in order to collect the yassdk, or tribute paid in furs among
the Buriits, established an entrenched post provided with towers, stock-
ades, a ditch and barriers, which received the name of Irkitsk from its
position on the Irkat. Afterwards it was transferred to the bank of the An-
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g xm. ‘hear the present mthv(ﬂ'ul and the \rvhhlslwp s house. In 1682, a spec-
fal voyevm]st\p dnder the command of vovevoda or military  chief, was

4‘\!@llshed th Irkatsk and,in 1686, the sto(lmded post was transformed into
a iomn. Th(' ukdz, regarding the organisation of the Irkatsk government, was
|»uln‘11§hed on the 14 Oc¢ tober, 1764 and, in 1783, the Irkutsk vicegerency was
formed, comprising the Irkutsk, Nerchinsk, Transbaikal and Okhotsk territories.
... »In 1803, the whole of
Siheria was subjected to
the administration of a
Governor-General, resid-
ent at Irkatsk. Among
the holders of this office
may be mentioned: Privy
Goupcillor.  Seleféntov.
Privy* Councillor Péstel
u.ml M. M. Speransky,
Who was appointed on
the 22 March, 1819, and

During this period, Si-
b#gia for purposes--of
administration- was di-
vided into West and East Irkutsk. Cathedral of the Epiphany.

Siberia. The first Gover-

nor-General of Eastern Siberia was Privy Councillor Lavinsky. The history
of thé town and of Eastern Siberia is closely connected with the names of
su¢heminent administrators as Count M. N. Muraviov-Amursky, under whose

& management the Amar region was annexed to Russia, and Count A. P. [gna-

tiev, who contributed to
accelerate the construe-
tion of the Siberian Rail-
way, and applied him-
self to the study of the
economic conditions of
the country, which re-
sulted in most valuable
statistical works specially
compiled on hisinitiative.
In outward appea-
rance, Irkutsk is one of
the finest and best or-
ganised towns of Siberia.
It is supplied with tele-
phones, but the streets
are unpaved and badly
Irkiitsk. Governor-General's house. lit. The town contains

124 streets, 15 lanes, 6

squares and 2 public gardens. The total number of buildings is 12,477, valued
at R. 24,955.275; of them, 1,458 are of stone (value R. 17,651,750), 31 are made of'
mixed material (value R. 147,175), 10,988 of wood (value R. 7,156,350). A second
class nunnery of the Miraculous Apparition of the Holy Virgin was founded in
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1693. There are two cathedrals, one of ()ur Lady of Kazan, the other of the
Epihhany; 39 orthodox (hur(,hpx 14 parish churches of stone 13 house-chapels,
one at the cemetery, one stone church eut of tewn, near the Archbishop’s
summer villa; a Catholic and a Lutheran chapel. twoJewish synagogues and
a Mohammedan mosque. The best buildings of the town are the theatre, mus-
eum, the (Governor-General's house, the Girls' Institute of the Emperor Ni-
cholas I, Mrs. Medvédnikov's orphanage, an industrial scheol, a public
club, and Sukachév's house, containing the court of justice and the district
tribunal. :

The educational institutions are 45 in number: a churech seminary, a
church school for boys, commercial, mechanical and technieal school, seminary
for teachers, elementary school attached to the seminary, mining- school,
town school with classes, commercial aud educational school of N. P. Tra-
péznikov, the institute for girls of the Emperor Nicholas I, Khiminov's gym-
nasitm, for girls Mrs. Belidev's preparatory g¢ymnasium for girls, central
schoolsfor women# sur-
ceons’ assistants, Mrs.
Medvédnikov's orphan-
age,orphans’ commniercial
school, military school,
military surgeons’assist-
ants school,  preparae
tory school for the Si-
berian Cadet Corps, 5
parish schools, one in-
fant school, 15 parish
4(‘]1001\'1"01' hoys and girls
and 2 Sunday schools.

There are 14 charit-
able institutions: the
Alexander children’s

Irkitsk. Sukachév’s house, containing judicial institutions. home.the chidren's home

bearing the name of the
Empress Maria Feodorovna, the home of the Charitable Society, a home for
convict children, a correctional and educational home for boyvs and girls,
Sibiriakov's poorhouse, Bazinov's foundling home, the poorhouse attached to
the Kuznetsiov Hospital, the poorhouse attached to the Relief Society of the
Mater Dolorosa. Mrs. Sukachév’s poorhouse, the Mary Sisters of Merey Sov
ciety, the Jacob Alexander Sisters of Mercy Society, and a night shelter.

There are the following missionary, charit able, seientific and other socicties
operating in aceordance with their charters: Diocesan committee of the orthos
dox missionary society, local department of the Russian Red Cross Society,
Relief Society of the Mater Dolorosa, Irktsk Roman Catholic Relief Society,
Relief Society for Poor Emigrants, Relief Society for destitute schoolchildren
in Eastern Siberia, a clerks’ mutual aid society, a branch of the Relief Society
for the Blind under the patronage of the Empress Mary Alexdndrovna, a mutual
aid society for scholars and teachers of the Irkutsk government, the East
Siberian branch of the Imperial Russian Geographical Society opened in 1851,

Society of Doctors of Eastern Siberia, a volunteer fire brigade, a society of-

amateur cyclists, the Society of Siberian Sportsmen, an amateur’s society of
music and htemhxre, Y coopemtxve supplv society, the Irkutsk publie 01ub,
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a military elub, and a clerks “mutual aid society club. Musical classes were
established in 1899, the only organisation of this kind throughout Siberia.

The town theatre, which is one of finest provineial theatres was built
according to the plan of the architect Schriter at a cost of R. 204,473, including
a donation of R. 198,159. The construction of this building is entirely due to
the Governor-General A. D. Goremykin, who collected private donatiens and
superintended the work. e

Among  scientific
societies, may be ment-
ioned the East Siberian
branch of the [mperial
Russian  Geographical
Society, which was the
first scientific society
in Siberia established in
1851, in the time of Count
Muraviov - Amursky. [t
occupies a fine buliding
on the bank of the An-
gard, and possesses an
extensive museum with
righ ethnographical and
archaeological  collee-
tions.

The objects compo- Theatre in Irkutsk.
sing the Buddhist col-
laction are particularly worthy of attention, being very well selected.

The museum library contains 4,225 works and 508 maps: the Siberian
division is especially complete and interesting. The publication of the ,Me-
moirs“ of the Siberian
Geographical Society be-
gan in 1854 the first
: numbers were printed
in St. Petersburg, and
the next following in
[rkatsk. Since 1870, the
Society has published
its ,News" containing
short reviews and arti-
cles, aiming at the rapid
communication of infor-
mation offering any par-
ticular interest. Forsome
vears past,the ,Memoirs®
have ceased to be pub-

Museum of the East Siberian branch of the Imperial Geographical lished by the Society.
BaReT: The ,News“ comprises
XXIII volumes from 1898.

Since 1897, the Society has published periodical ,Transactions®, of which
two editions have been issued. The scientific activity of the Society is
closely connected with the names of Maak, Chekanovsky, Dyhovsky, God-

-
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lévsky, Chérsky, Militutin, Potdnin, Pozdndev
Adrianov, Miikov, Jochelsohn, Klemenz

Yadrintsev, Przewilski, Poliakoy,
Obiushev and others.

Libraries: public town library with tixed entrance fee, containing over
97.000 volumes, a free public reading-room, the East Siberian Imperial Russ-
ian Geographical Society's library free: that of the ecclesiastical seminary.

irkdtsk. Catholic church

(razette (twice a month), Circulars for the East

N a
S

AN e

which is one of the best,
possessing 20,000 vol-
umes and including rare
and valuable editions.
Maktshin's  bookshop,
Mrs. Vitkévski's printing
offices, and those of the
Government Board, Ko-
kovin, Leibovich, Maku-
shin and Sizykh.

Photographic studios:
Arnold Hofmann, Degtia-
riov, Mamonov, and Mi-
lévsky.

Periodicals published
in Irkutsk: The Irkuatsk
Government Gazette (we-
ekly), Irkitsk Diocesan
Siberian schools under

the control of the Ministry of Education (twice a month). The Irktutsk Muni-
cipality News (isstied twice a month), the East-Siberian Imperial Geographical

Society's News (irregularly

same Society (irregular
publications), Transac-
tions of the Society of
Doctors of Eastern Si-
beria. The Eastern Re-
view (literature and po-
lities, daily) R. 9 a year:
the Siberian Magazine is
published as supplement
to the Gazette, subscrip-
tion R..2 a year.
Hospitals and sani-
tary institutions: Kuz-
netsov,  Soldatov, for
citizens of the lower
class, tne Ivan and Ma-
tribna children’s hospi-
tal, the Mikhéev dispens-
ary, a military hospital,

and a sanatorium for animals.

issued five times a

vear), Transactions of the

Irkitsk. Lutheran church.

There are 4 chemist's shops, a druggist’s and the chemical store of tho

military department.

Being the centre of the administrative and judiecial institutions, Irkatsk
contains also other establishments meeting the requirements of the country:
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the Irkutsk customlmu%, the magnetic and meteorological ohservatory and the
mining department with goldmelting laboratory.

Works und factories of Irkatsk, eomprising 88 various concerns, have a
total production exceeding a million rubls (R. 1,060,451); there are 15 tanner-
ies (R. 249,700), 6 fur manufactories (R. 64,100), 4 soap and tallow boileries
(R. 82,000), 5 distilleries and rectifying works (R. 170,277), 5 breweries (R. 71,777),
3 saw-mills (R. 66,599), and 6 rope-yards (R. 20,560). According to data obtained
from the revenue deparment, the annual turnover of the commercial enter-
prises paying doty amounts to R. 19,604,500. ;

In this respect, the
first place belongs to T Ay T
drapery and manufac-- |
tured wares—R. 3,850,000,
grocery — R, 3,046,000,
haberdashery and iron
wares--R. 1,466,000, tea
and Chinese goods,— R,
1,210,000, furs— R. 684,000,
shoes —R. 630,000, wine
cellars—R. 589,600, min-
ing goods —R. 535,000,
shipping enterprises—R
400,000, lish industry—R.
235,000, iron and pig-
iron—R. 175,000 etc.

The duties, levied
(mainly on tea) at the Irkiitsk. Commercial school.

Irkatsk customhouse,
amounted in 1897 to R. 9,434,231. 23 k. eold.

The annual turnover of the commercial euterprises shews Irkatsk to be
an important trading centre. The following financial iustitutions meet the
requirements of local trade and industry: a branch of the State Bank. branch
of the Siberian Trade Bank, branch of the Russo-Chinese Bank, Mrs. Med-
védnikov's Bank, an agency of the Nizhni-Névgorod-Saméra and Yaresliv-
Kostrom# Land Bank, a town loan-bank. The capital and savings deposited
at the local branch of the State Bank of Irkttsk amount to a sum of R. 22,000,000,

According to the local data of 1899, the town revenue amounted to 'R.
681,529, including R. 275,476 interest on private capital presented to the town.

The property of the town, besides real estate, consists of a capital amount-
ing to R. 4,946,419 at the disposal of the town board; the interest is em-
ployed for the maintenance of educational and charitable institutions. The
largest capital (R. 2,456,493) belongs to Trapéznikoy.

The most important firms are Belogolovy—distillery, cloth and glass wares;
Viorov—manufactured articles; Glotov, shipping on the Léna and Angard;
Zhdarnikov—Mining goods; Kalmeer, manufactured and mercery goods; Sibiriakév,
mining, navigation on the Amur; Telnykh—haberdashery and iron wares; Ko-
roliov—tea and sugar; Molchdnov—tea; Nemchinov—tea, navigation on the
Baikdl; Stakhéev—-manufdactured wares; Kuznetsév—grocery, and the Léna—
Vitim Company, belonging to Nemchinov, Bazinov and Sibiriakov, A
~ Transport offices: Andréev, Bliakher, Brothers Kuznetsov, Kukhtérin and
Sons, Poliakov, Pughnikov and Shidrin, : :

" 20s
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Hotels and furnished rooms: ,Decot® (hotel and restaurant) is the best, with
rooms from R. 2 a day. ,Europe®, ,Siberia* (hotel and restaurant), the ,Amur
Inn* (furnished rooms), ,Jung* with good restaurant and excellent dinners.

Hackney-coach tariff: drive in the town 30 k. in the day, 40 k. ‘at night.
To the Jerusalem mountain, to the Upper-Amur barrier and the Bazinov child-
ren’s hospital, 30 k. in the day, and 50 k. at night. To the suburbs ‘of Gliz-
kovo, Znaménie and to the Trading Settlement 40 k in the day, 60 k. at night.
The toll for the passage of the bridge of the Tsesarévich Nicholus and over
the Angard is paid by the passenger. An houwr's drive costs 50 k. in the day.
and 60 k. at night. The day lasts from 7 o’clock in the morning to 10 in the

,evening, the night commences at 10 in the evening and ends at 7 in the
morning.
' Among the historical events in the life of the town, may be mentioned:
the visit of the Grand Duke Alexis Alexiindrovich in 1873, on his way round
i the world, and in 1891,
that of the Tsesarévich,
the present Emperor
Nicholas 11. His Imperial
Majesty arrived in Ir-
kutsk, the 23 June, in
the steamer ,Sperdnsky*
by the Angari; the land-
ing - place was adorned
with a triumphal arch,
which remains to the
present day. Duaring his
stay in the town from
the 23 to the 24 June,
i His Imperial Majesty vis-
; e i e . ited many educational
Bridge over the Angaré in the town of Irkitsk. establishments, the mus-
eum of the Eastern
b Branch of the Imperial Russian Geographical Society, the gold-melting labor-
atory, the Monastery of the Ascension, and the camp of the reserve battal-
ion. - He also attended the consecration and opening of the pontoon bridge
wover‘the Angard, which was built at the costof the town in commemoration
of the Imperial visit. On the 24 June, after having been present at a ball in
the public club, His Imperial Majesty left Irkitsk on the steamer ,Speransk:“
and, steaming down the Angari, reached the settiement of Barkhotovo,
whenece accompanied by A. D Goremykin, Governor-General of Irkatsk, he
proceeded in an open carriage to Tomsk. Within the last years of the cent-
ury, the history of the town and of the whole of Siberia has been marked =
hy events important for civilisation: the introduction of new laws in 1806,
and the opening of traffiec on the Great Siberian Railway in 1898, connecting -
Irklitsk and Europe by an uninterrupted railway line.

Leaving the station of Irkatsk, the line runs along the lef( bank of the:
Angari.

67) Mikhdlevo (1748 v. from Krivoshchékovo, 5076 v. from bheli:&hmsk). }4
is situated near the village of Mikhi#levo (pop. 352). Continuing - its course
along the left bank of the Angard, the line, within 3 versts of the Mm A
Crosses, the Kunmi, left tnbumm of the Anp,ard by a wooden Bridgﬁa of lﬁ ,;:
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sazhens. Further, at the 50 verst, it runs over the Lanka by a wooden bridge
of 15 sazhens. From this station to the Baikal, there ave 44 small wooden
bridges.

68) Baikal. (1786 v.
from Krivoshehékovo,
3116 v {rom Cheliibinsk)
From this station, the
line runs for a distance
of about 400 sazhens
and, reaching the Bai-
kal, terminates at the
landing - place, whence
the trains are transport-
ed by an icebreaking
ferry.

Arrival of the first train at Irkutsk on the 16 August, 1898,

The ruling grade throuchout the Irkutsk-Baikdl line is of 093 e
U i
The Tomsk branch line.

The branch line leaves the main Siberian track at the station of Taigds
(222°v. from Krivoshchékovo and 1554 v. from Cheliabinsk). Running#to~“the
north-east towards the town of Tomsk, the line has a total length of 89,345
versts, For a distanee of 20 versts, the line proceeds along the watershed of
the rivers Katdt and Kuyerbak, falling into the Ydya, Tuguydnovka and Ba-
sandaika. tributaries of the Tom."The country is monotonous and covered with
continuous and mostly swampy taiga.

1) Basandaika. V class station (45 v. from Taigd, 1599 v. from Chelia-
hinsk). From here the line proceeds along the watershed of the river Basan-
diika and Ushaika. The country becomes more hospitable and even pictur-
ASHUe,

2) Mezheninovka. IV class sta-
tion (73 v. from Taiga, 1627 v. from
Cheliabinsk). Leaving the station, the
line crosses the Ushidika (77 v.) by an
iron bridge, with_  an opening of 20
sazhens, and gradually ascending the
Voskresénskaya mountain reaches the
town of Tomsk. A considerable quantity
of goods, mainly wheat-flour, are con-
veyed from this station to Eastern Si-
View of the Tomsk branch. beria: in 1898, the export of wheat-flour
. amounted to 214,340 puds. :

i - 3) Tomsk. Il class station. Buffet. (82 v. from Taigd, 1636 y. from Che-
i lidbinsk). Is gitvumed within 2 versts of the town of Tomsk, being L:mnoct.gd
§ 3ol % b
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with it by a macadam road. The country is level, dry and cove red with young
birch wood. The @oods traffic is considerable, and increases in connexion with
the expansion of commercial relations evoked by the railway
During the year 1898, the goods
T imported from the station amounted to
3.000,000 puds. About 284,989 puds of
wheat-flour were conveyed ' from the
station to Eastern Siberia in 1898
Hence the line descends with maximum
orades of 015 towards the river Toni.
) Cheremoshniki. V class sta-
tion (89 v. from Taiga, 1643 v. from
Bridge over the Ushaika Cheliabinsk) is situated on the bank
of the Tom near the landing-place,
where commences the steamship communication by the rivers of the Ob bas-
in. Large buildings stand close at hand for the accomodation of goods entrusted
to the shipowners for further
convevance to Tiumén, Bar-
naul and other centres, and
for the storage of zoods com-
ing bhy water, mainly from
European Russia through Tiu-
meén, to be forwarded to the
East by the Great Siberian
Railway.
# A medical and feeding
station has been established
iu prn‘,imil‘\‘ to the landing- Quay of the Ushédika in Tomsk.

for the use of emi-

places
grants, arriving by steamers from Tiumén and proceeding to the localities
allotted for colonisation. It is the residence of an official entrusted with the
regulation of the emigration movement.

The Tomsk branch line throughout its course has many curves, the pro-
file of the roadway shews grades of 015, with curves having a radius of 150
sazhens. The construe-
tion of the branch line
was commenced during
the summer of 1895, and
completed in the autunm
of 1896,

Tomsk is a govern-
ment town, standing on
the right bank of the
Tom at its junetion with
the river Ushdika (56°
20' N, lat, 54° 37vé' E.

The Alexis Monastery in Tomsk. long). The l“"““"." oeeup-

ied by the town is form-

ed partly by the low branches of the Kuznétsk Alatdu (343 feot), *nd partly
by lowland lyingz at the foot of these branches. The river Tom skirts the
town, forming an almosl regular semiecirele from the south-west and western
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side. The population of the town was given at 52430 by the census of 1897,
(27140 males, 25,290 females). In this respect, Tomsk holds the first place
among the towns of Siberia.

The town was founded at the beginning of the XVII century. By eom-
mand of the Tsar Boris Godunov, the Cossack Major Pisarev and the noble's
son Tyrkov, established the Tomsk stockaded post, which received its name
from the river Tom and stood in a locality resorted to by the wandering
Tatar tribe of Yeushtinisy ruled by the Prince Tayin. The entrenched
post soon hecame of great importance for the subjection of the native
tribes. In 1629, the Tomsk post was transformed into 2 town; in 1708,
after the organisation of a Siberian government with the chief town of T«
bolsk, it ranked as a district town; in 1719, Tomsk was included in the Yeni-
stisk provinee, in 1726, in the Tobolsk government: in 1782, afier the estab-
lishment of the Tobolsk vicegereney, it ranked again as a disirict towh: in
1797, it was transformed into a district town of the Tobdlsk government, and
in 1804, after the organ

isationof aspeecial Tomsk —
covernment, it became "
its capital.

The climate of Tomsk
is rather severce. The
meane annual  {temperi-
ture is 0.7. The ice on
the river Tom near the
town breaks on the 30
April, and sets again on
the .2 November; thus
the river remains free
of. fce for 186 days in
the vear. Southernwinds
prevail. At the present
data, Tomsk is a well
built” town containing
many fine edifices of
stone, fitted with elec-
tric light and telephones:
some of the streets
are, paved. The total
number -of buildings in
the town exceeds 13,000,
there are over 3,200
estates. Tomsk possesses
2 orthodox “monasteries
and 23 churches, inelud-
ing 8 ]Hll‘iSh churches. , Cathedral of the Annunciation in Tomsk.

The Alexis monas-
tery was founded in 1605 it contains a church with an aisle in honour of
Our Lady of Kazun, of Alexis the Servant of God and of the Saints Frol dnd
Lavr. There are oaly four monks, the Superior is endowed with the rank
of Archimandrite. Among the ancient relics kept in the monastery,-a large
wooden cross and a local image of the Holy Virgin, painted in 1661, are parti-

3
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cularly noteworthy, The first Tomsk school was created in the monastery in
1746 'i’hv enclosure of the monastery eontains the grave of the monk Theodore
Kuzmich, who died in 1861 and was particuiarly venerated on account of his
ascetic life. Many " legends are attached to this personage, which |>m\'v even
been spread hy the press! (Russian Antiquity, 1880, 1887, 1804# pamphlet
published in 1895 and 1896).

The nunnery of John the Baptist was founded in 1864 at the cost of the
Tomsk merchant’s widow Mikhéev, who was the first Lady Superior of the

The Trinity Cathedral in Tomsk.

nunnery, It contains the Cathedral of the Assumption, with aisles in honour
of the Assumption of the Holy Virgin, of Alexis, the Metropolitan-of Moscow
and John, the Metropolitan of Novgorod; and the church of St. Innocent,
¢onseerated to the first archbishop of Irkatsk. A workhouse is attached to
‘the monastery. The following orthodox churches are eonnected with histor-
ical events: the Nativify or Nicholas chureh, formerly belonging to the
nunnery founded in 1671, which has long ceased to exist. From 1740 to 1742,
the walls of this nunnery held the unhappy bride of the Emperor Peter 11,
the Princess Catherine Dolgortky, who was set free by the Empress ' Eliza-
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The chureh of the Miraculous Apparition of the Holy Virgin, built in the
middle of the XVIII century by the noble Kalachdv, contains several ancient
images. Cathedrals: of the Annunciation, erected in 1804 in the name of the
image of the Annuneciation and of the Presentation; of the Holy Trinity. found-
ed in 1845, and now finished with aisles consecrated to the Holy Trinity,
Saint Nicholas and St. Alexander Névsky. The Cathedral of the Holy Trinity
was erected according to the plans of the architeet Ton, and is in the same
style as the church of the Presentation belong-
ing to the Semidénov regiment in St.-Petersburg.
In 1855, the cupola which had just been finished
fell in, and the work was abandoned for some
time. It was resumed only in 1885, thanks to
the efforts of the former Archbishop of Tomsk
and Semipalitinsk, Vladimir, and of the honor-
ary citizen Mikhdilov, who both collected priv-
ate donations for the construction of the cath- Chapel of the Iberian Mother

n ; of God in Tomsk.
edral. The largest sum was given by Mrs.
Zibulskaya.

Besides these churches, the town possesses 4 chapels. The chapel of Our
Lady of Iberia, erected in 1854 at the cost of Mr. Petrov, enjoys special vener-
ation; it is built on the model of fthe Iberian chapel in Moscow and the
image of Our Lady of Iberia is an exact copy of the Moscow painting.

Foreign churches: Lutheran church of St. Mary; Catholic ¢hurch in hon-
our of the Intercession of the Holy Virgin: 3 Jewish synagogues and a
Mohammedan mosque.

On aceount of the number of its schools and the general level of edue-
ation, Tomsk holds an important place among the government-towns of the
Empire. Tt contains: one first class school, 5 second class, 7 lower and 43
elementary schools, forming a total of 56 educational institutions.

Tomsk University.

The Tomsk Imperial University with two faculties (medicine, 232 stud-
ents and law, 156 students), a government gymnasium (418 pupils), the
Alexis modern scheol, founded in memory of the Grand Duke Alexis Alexin-
drovich's visit to the town (179 scholars), the Mary gymnasium for girls
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(698 pupils) an egclesiastic seminary (237 students), a diocesan school for
eirls (239 pupils) a clergy school for boys (163 scholarsp), a district school
(218 pop.). 28 parish schools (11 for boys with 1086 pupils, 9 for girls with
927 pupils), 11 parish schools (216 boys, 219 girls). a church parish school with
two classes for training peasant bovs as teachers for village reading schools
(78 pup.). a commercial school (93 pup.) the Brothers’ Koroliévy commercial
school (67 pup.), a veterinary and surgeon’s school (43 pup.), a school for
midwives (82 pup.), 3 Sunday schools (90 boys, 402 girls), 4 privaté mixed
schools (145 boys, 111 girls), 4 home schools (81 boys, 100 girls), a Tatar
school of the Ministry of the Interior (37 pup.). The total number of pupils
in all the educational establishments of Tomsk, with the exception of the
university, on the 1 January was 5989, forming a proportion of one pupil to
9 inhabitants of the town, or one elementary school pupil to 15 inhabitants.
The first place among
the numerous education-
al institutions bhelongs
to the Tomsk Imperial
University, which is the
only one in Siberia and
in the whole of the Asia-
tic dominions; it was
founded on the 26 Aug-
ust, 1880, and{ dinaugur
ated- on the 22 #uly,
1888, on the name, day
ol the Empress  Mary
Feddorovna.

Possessing only a
faculty. of medicine, the
Archacological Museum #f Tomsk University. uni\'(}]‘S“}‘, during a

period’of ten years, had

over a thousand students. of whom 239 took degrees as-doctors of medicine
up to the vear 1898.

Although it had only a medical faculty, the univeépsity exerted a most
civilising effect upon Siberia, providing with young physicians some of the
distant and desert districts of the country, and also furnishing a series of
scientifie expeditions to the North-Asiatic continent.

The opening of a faculty of law in the Tomsk University, which took
place in 1898, will in the near future introduce a new element of civilisation
in the life of Siberia, and furnish fresh pioneers for the promotion of publie
justice in far off regions, lying aloof from the centres of ecivilisation.

The university possesses a zoological and botanical museum with beau-
tiful colleetions' from polar countries, made by the Vega expedition under the
command of the celebrated Nordenskjild.

It further contains a herbarium gathered by Potdmin on the Tarbagataii
and near the Zaisdan, collections made by professors of the Tomsk university:
Korzhinsky, Kishchenko and others.

The mineralogical and geological museum is enviched by valuable spee-
imens given by Maximilian Duke of Leuchtenberg, wviz. a palacontological
colleetion made in the years 18401850, (3,565 species). The archacological
and ethnographical museum is due to the efforts of Florinsky, the former
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curator of the West Siberian distriel and founder of the wmiversity. A de-
seription of the museum, with detailed catalogues and explanations regarding
archaeological excavations made in Siberia, is to be found in the works of
Florinsky. ’

The most important and interesting collections are contained in the Si-
dorov cases, viz. a collection of Tobolsk antiquities found by Zndmensky,
that of Dmitriev-Mamo-
nov containing ohjects
excavated from kurgans
and found during explor-
ations conducted near
Tobolsk:; this eollection
is composed of objects
dating from prehistoric
times, which have been
presented to the us-
eum by the explorer.
Besides these, there are
articles collected by Flo-
rinsky (Semirechensk
antiquities), by Nekrasoy
(Tomsk antiquities), by
Kuznetsov (Illll‘lqllili(‘.\‘”*' Anatomical Museum of Tumsk University.
the Minusinsk district) ete.

The anatomical and physical cabinets and a chemical laboratory have
been organised with the aid of liberal donations made by Sibiriakov.

The library of the
museum is its chief orn-

ament, numbering over
100,000 volumes. The
first gift to the library
was made by Count
Stroganov, who present-
ed a valuable colieetion
of books, engravings,
original designs and
sketches referring to va-
rious sciences. The books
are beautifully bound
and some of' them belong
to the earliest editions:
others are unica and add
an inestimable value to

! this enlightened gift. A
Library of Count Stréganov in the Tomsk University. v ?hl‘l.mt‘ donation of 5000
e R ¢

volumes was made by

Prince Golitsyn, and the successors of Count Litke presented his library to
the museum.

In course of time, other books were added to the university library,

by private donations; such: ave the books which beloaged to the poet

Zhukovsky, tutor of the Emperor Alexander 11 (4674 vol.), to the Academician
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Nikitenko (2000 titles): to Count Valtey, former Minister of the Interior; to
Manaséin, former Professor of the Military Academy of Medicine (9000 vol.);
to Professor Pfeifer in Weimar (2014 titles); to Neklindov, former Assistant
Minister of the Interior. to Professor Gneist in Berlin (about 10,000 books and
pamphlets).

The physical cabinet of the Tomsk University.

The following clinies are attached to the university: therapeutie, lying-
in, surgical, dermatological, for children and lunaties.. The clinies are open
from the 1 September to the 1 May, with a fee of R. 7 a month. The rate for
a separate room is R. 50 a month.

Near the university, stands a three-storeyed building inhabited by 80 stud-
ents, which was erected by private subseription. As it does not suffice for
the inereased number of students, since the addition of a new faculty to the
university subscriptions for the construction of ‘a new building are now being
solicited and a special committee of the Tomsk municipality has heen organ-
ised for this purpose. A substantial aid to the students is furnished by
scholarships, 58 of which are at the disposal of the wuniversity, 20 of them
heing provided by the Government with a value of R. 300 each, the_others
derived from the interest on the money given at different times and
by different persons to the university. The capital employed for scholar-
ships, .composed ~af private donations, at the present time amounts to
R. 4,000,000; the largest sums were given by Solomonov (R. 59,000), Portnoy
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(R. 70,000, Zybulsky (R. 33.000), Kuznetsov (R. 43000), Count Ilgnatiev
(R. 28,000), Sivers (R. 24,000) and the Kidkhta merchants (R. 17,000).

The erection of a Technological Institute, which will be the first in
Siberia, promises to create a centre for the diffusion of the practical sciences
in Siberia.

Charitable institu-
tions: a charity board, [ v ; WL
hospital, poorhouse, a '
lunatic asylum (founded
1805) maintained at the
cost of the board and
from sums obtained by
taxation. The hospital of
the board, being situated
close to the clinie of
the University, serves
the same purpose. The
Mary children’s home
under the patronage of
the  Empress  Mary,
founded in 1844 at the
cost of Commercial Coun-
cillor Popdv, This estab- .
lishment owns a capital of R. 140,000, given by the goldminer Astashov
and Mrs. Zybulsky: the Mary orphanage, founded by the honorary citizen
Pashnikov and his wife, in commemoration of the miraculous escape of the

Clinics of the Tomsk University,

Imperial family from the railway accident which happened on the 17 October,
1888. The orphanage is provided with a capital of R. 60,000; foundlings and
orphans are admitted to it. The Vladimir Home, founded in 1869 in comme-
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morafion of the Grand Duke Vladimir Alexdndrovich's visit to Tomsk, is
under the control of the Empress Mary Department. The building of the
home was constructed at the cost of the merchants Petrov. and Mikbailov.
This institution possesses a capital of R. 80000, There are further a poor-
house for the lower class citizens: the Pokrov poorhouse: the poorhouse
of the Jewish Society; a night-shelter near the landing-place of Cheremoshniki;
a home for emigrants’ children, founded in 1898 on the initiative of Mrs.
Lomachévsky, wife of the Tomsk governor, by voluntary donations.

Missionary and charitable societies operating in accordance with their
charters: The Committee of the Orthodox Missionary Society, a branch of
the antisectarian brotherhood of Saint Demetrius, relief societies attached
to a great number of parish churches throughout the town. These societies
were organised and developed by the Archbishop Macarius of the Tomsk
diocese. The Society of the Exaltation of the Cross maintains a baby-home,
offering a day-shelter to children whose parents are away at work. The
activity of the societies consists in relieving ‘the poor, orphans and persons
incapahle of working, and in affording pecuniary relief in cases of extreme
necessity.

The parish societies established a workhouse, which in 1898 passed under
the control of the general workhouse ward, enjoying the patronage of Her
Imperial Majesty the Empress Alexdndra Feddorovna The charitable society
organised in 1886, with a far-reaching philanthropic activity directed by its
president Giliirov, maintains the Pokrév poorhouse and a night-shelter, as
well as providing cheap dinners and a home for children and old people.
The Scholars™ Relief Society, founded in 1873, has for its object the assistance
of students of the Tomsk University and of other higherseducational estab-
lishments. There are also an institution for destitute pupils of the Tomsk
ecclesiastical seminary, a relief society for destitute pupils of the Alexis modern
school, and a society for the promotion of elementary ‘education, organised
on the initiative of Maknshin, which has been aperating since 1882. The
successful development of elementary education #6 be noticed in Tomsk is
largely due to the valuable activity of this last society.

It organises sunday lectures, maintains a needlework school, a culinary
school for girls, and technical and commercial Sunday classes for boys. The

public library, opened by
the society, is deposited
v : in a beautiful building
; given by Valgtzov, with
a hall holding about 400
people. There is also a
small museum for prac-
tical science. The Tloecal
department of the Red
Jross Society, existing
since 1874, possesses a
capital of R. 50,000; it
maintains a society of
sisters of mercy, with a
Governor's House at Tomsk, hospital for children and
a4 adispensary. Other org- .
anisations are the General Board of the Imperial Hissian Humane Society, the
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